
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

May 06, 2019 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  May 06, 2019 

  Page 2 of 4 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

May 06, 2019 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Welcome & Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Rev. William Sawyer 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 4. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

1. U.S. Census Bureau - Doug Bell 

2. Camden County Public Schools - Dr. Joe Ferrell 

3. Sheriff's Office Update - Sheriff Jones 

4. Employee Recognition 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 5. Public Hearings 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  May 06, 2019 

  Page 3 of 4 

 

A. Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing Major Subdivision (UDO 2019-02-01) 

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Monthly Tax Report - Ken Bowman 

B. Resolution 2019-05-01 - Ken Bowman 

ITEM 7. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

1. Regional Advisory Council - Gwen Wescott 

2. Albemarle Regional Library Board - Nona Smith 

3. Community Advisory Committee - Clarann Mansfield 

ITEM 8. Consent Agenda  

1. BOC Meeting Minutes - February 28, 2019 

2. BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - March 28, 2019 

3. BOC Meeting Minutes - April 1, 2019 

4. BOC Meeting Minutes - April 8, 2019 

5. Budget Amendments 

6. School Budget Amendments 

7. Tax Collection Report 

8. DMV Monthly Report 

9. Refunds Over $100.00 

10. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

11. FY 2019-2020 Revised Annual Budget & CIP Calendar 

12. 2018-2019 Audit Contracts 

13. Estimated Property Values 

14. DSVC Funding Extension 

15. HMGP Contract - Holland Consulting Planners, Inc. 

16. Set Public Hearing - FY 2019-2020 Budget 

17. Set Public Hearing - 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Plan 

18. Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-03-01 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  May 06, 2019 

  Page 4 of 4 

 

19. Set Public Hearing - Prelim. Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 10. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

A. FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report 

B. Register of Deeds 

ITEM 12. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 13. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.1 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   U.S. Census Bureau - Doug Bell 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Mr. Doug Bell with the U.S. Census Bureau will make a presentation. 

4.1

Packet Pg. 5



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.2 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Camden County Public Schools - Dr. Joe Ferrell 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Dr. Ferrell will present the 2019-2020 Board of Education budget to the Board of Commissioners. 

4.2

Packet Pg. 6



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.3 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Sheriff's Office - Kevin Jones 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Sheriff Jones will give a department update from the Sheriff's Office. 

4.3

Packet Pg. 7



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.4 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Employee Recognition 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

The following employees will be recognized: 

 

1) Charles Sawyer & Thomas Sawyer - Received their Grade 1 Biological Operator 

Certification     on March 14, 2019.  Charles has been the Distribution/Collection System 

Operator since April 2015 and has been with the County since October 2011.  Thomas is 

the Water Treatment Operator in Charge since July 2006 and has been with the County 

since August 2003. 

 

2) Sarah Lane - Sarah has been with Camden County for 20 years as of December 2018; 

the last 14 years as a Social Worker I/A&T.  She previously worked for Pasquotank 

County for 15 years.  She retired on March 31, 2019.  We would like to take this moment 

to recognize this achievement. 

 

3)  Delores Stone has been with Camden County for 18 years when she retired as a 

Travel Consultant(part-time) at the Visitor Center. She retired in March 2019. Delores 

was unable to attend tonight, however we would like to take a moment to recognize this 

achievement & all the citizens she has helped throughout her career. 

 

New Employee: 

4.4

Packet Pg. 8



 
1) Laura Jolley - Laura Jolley will be the new Senior Center Coordinator beginning 

Monday, May 13th. She lives in Camden with her family and brings a wealth of 

knowledge and creativity to this position. We look forward to all the new ideas she will 

bring to the Senior Center.  

4.4

Packet Pg. 9



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing Major 

Subdivision (UDO 2019-02-01) 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet North River Crossing

 (DOC) 

Staff Findings_North River (PDF) 

Preliminary Plat Pg 5 OVERVIEW SHEET (PDF) 

Pre-Development DA Map (PDF) 

NRC Post Development (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

See attached summary. 

Recommendation: 

Amend agenda for consideration after public hearing. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 10



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

          
 
 
 

Item Number:  

     

Meeting Date:   May 6, 2019 

Attachments:   Preliminary Plan/Staff Findings/TRC inputs  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Public Hearing; Preliminary Plan  
                       Phase II North River Crossing Major 

Subdivision – (UDO 2019-02-01) 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Planning Board met on March 20, 2019 to consider the Preliminary Plan for Phase 

II North River Crossing 42 lot major residential subdivision and after discussion 

with staff, applicant, adjacent property owners on drainage concerns and 

considering Technical Review Committee input, Planning Board recommended 

approval of the Phase II Preliminary Plan for North River Crossing Major 

Subdivision with the recommendations as stated in Staff’s Findings on a 4-0 vote.      

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. Amend agenda for consideration after public hearing.  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak    ____ 

R. Munro       ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak    ____ 
R. Munro       ____ 
ABSENT        ____ 
RECUSED     ____ 
 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
 C

ro
ss

in
g

  (
23

70
 :

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
 C

ro
ss

in
g

 M
aj

o
r 

S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 (
U

D
O



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 F
in

d
in

g
s_

N
o

rt
h

 R
iv

er
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



P

A

M

L

I

C

O

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

(

4

5

'
 

R

/

W

)

D

I

T

C

H

 

B

A

N

D

 

R

O

A

D

S

R

1

1

2

2

 

(

5

0

'
 

R

/

W

)

N

 
S

A

N

D

Y

 
H

O

O

K

 
R

O

A

D

(
S

R

1
1
0
7
)

D

I
T

C

H

 
B

A

N

D

 
R

O

A

D

 
S

R

1

1

2

2

 
(

5

0

'
 
R

/
W

)

C

A

P

E

 

F

E

A

R

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

(

4

5

'
 

R

/

W

)

P

A

M

L

I
C

O

 
D

R

I
V

E

 
(

4

5

'
 
R

/
W

)

D

E

E

P

 

C

O

U

R

T

T

R

O

T

M

A

N

 

R

O

A

D

S

R

1

1

2

1

 

(

6

0

'
 

R

/

W

)

P

E

R

Q

U

I
M

A

N

S

 
D

R

I
V

E

 
(

7

5

'
 
R

/
W

)

C
A

P
E

 F
E

A
R

 D
R

IV
E

 (
4
5
' 
R

/W

)

P

A

M

L

I

C

O

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

(

4

5

'
 

R

/

W

)

C

H

O

W

A

N

 

C

O

U

R

T

C

A

P

E

 

F

E

A

R

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

(

7

5

'
 

R

/

W

)

P
E

R
Q

U
I
M

A
N

S
 
D

R
I
V

E
 
(
4
5

'
 
R

/
W

)

N

E

U

S

E

 
D

R

I
V

E

 
(
4

5

'
 
R

/
W

)

T

R

O

T

M

A

N

 

R

O

A

D

S

R

1

1

2

1

 

(

6

0

'
 

R

/

W

)

NORTHRIVER CROSSING PHASE 1A

P.C. 7, SL. 165

NORTHRIVER CROSSING

PHASE 1C

P.C. 8, SL. 117-118

NORTHRIVER CROSSING PHASE 1B

P.C. 8, SL. 47-48

N
O

R
T

H

NC NAD 82(2007) GRID NORTH

LEGEND

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

:

DATE:
SCALE:

DESIGNED:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

APPROVED:

SHEET:

OF

N
O

R
T

H
 
C

A
R

O
L
I
N

A

CAD FILE:

4588PH2PP1

S
H

I
L
O

H
 
T

O
W

N
S

H
I
P

C
A

M
D

E
N

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y

O
V

E
R

V
I
E

W

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N
 
P

L
A

T

N
O

R
T

H
 
R

I
V

E
R

 
C

R
O

S
S

I
N

G
 
P

H
A

S
E

 
2
A

,
2
B

,
2
C

52

BPG

DMK

MDB

DMK

1"=200'

01-22-19

4588

             PROJECT PHASING LEGEND

EXISTING PHASE 1     [32 LOTS]

PROPOSED PHASE 2A   [10 LOTS]

PROPOSED PHASE 2B   [10 LOTS]

PROPOSED PHASE 2C   [22 LOTS]

P

R

E

L

I
M

I
N

A

R

Y

F

O

R

 
R

E

V

I
E

W

 
 
 
P

U

R

P

O

S

E

S

 
O

N

L

Y

5.A.c

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
t 

P
g

 5
 O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 S
H

E
E

T
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 72

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 49

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 54

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHORELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
This document is the sole property of BPG, Inc. of Kitty Hawk, North Carolina.  The reproduction, in whole or part, or the modification of any detail or design is not to be made without the express written consent of Mark S. Bissell, Principal of BPG, Inc., Copyright 2005.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
143.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N69° 46' 27"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
10°36'07"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N24°01'46"W  8276.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 34

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 69

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 71

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 74

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 58

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 60

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 62

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 64

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 66

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 68

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 55

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 51

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 47

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 42

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 38

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 37

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 41

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 48

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 52

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 56

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F  DOUGLAS & JANET GREGORY TRUST  D.B. 226, PG. 563

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F ROBIN BROWN D.B. 307, PG. 413

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CLOAH J. HIGGINBOTHAM D.B. 166, PG. 782

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F BONNIE TAYLOR D.B. 326, PG. 75

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF DISTURBED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
NC NAD 83(2007) GRID COORDINATES N=953,664.59 E=2,861,598.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
9641.28'(GROUND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJOINING PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bissell Professional Group

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 1068

AutoCAD SHX Text
(252) 261-3266

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm License # C-956

AutoCAD SHX Text
Engineers, Planners, Surveyors and Environmental Specialists 

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
55.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
143.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
N41° 30' 25"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N64° 03' 59"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S65° 27' 37"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S83° 58' 05"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S24° 32' 23"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5° 57' 27"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
233.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
196.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
436.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6920.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
58.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
323.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
233.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
196.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S83° 05' 41"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S74° 15' 46"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N59° 01' 19"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N37° 40' 53"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S66° 13' 23"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
9°14'14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9°28'58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
89°31'43"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9°36'51"

AutoCAD SHX Text
55°34'46"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F NYMT LOAN TRUST D.B.351, PG.364

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 35

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 73

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 59

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 67

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 53

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 45

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 40

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 39

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 50

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F MARJORIE S. ROBERTS W.F. 07E/148

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CLOAH J. HIGGINBOTHAM D.B. 90, PG. 253

AutoCAD SHX Text
NCGS MONUMENT "CUR 1" NC GRID - NAD'83 N 963220.27' E 2860311.64 COMBINED FACTOR 1.00006581 ELEV = 8.75' NAVD'88 (GEOID'09)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NGGS MONUMENT"CUR 1" NC NAD 83(2007) GRID COORDINATES N=963,220.27 E=2,860,311.64 CGF=1.00006581

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET CONCRETE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET ADDRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3512 North Croatan Highway

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (252) 261-1760

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\projects\4588 North River Crossing\dwg\Survey\4588PH2PP1.dwg  3/11/2019  Plotted: 3/13/2019 8:58 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  3/11/2019  Plotted: 3/13/2019 8:58 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc33/11/2019  Plotted: 3/13/2019 8:58 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  Plotted: 3/13/2019 8:58 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc33/13/2019 8:58 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N63° 55' 41"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S83° 42' 33"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N5° 57' 27"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text
C10

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
148.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1188.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
367.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
194.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N78° 37' 43"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S84° 24' 46"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N43° 44' 04"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
0°30'19"

AutoCAD SHX Text
26°17'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 70

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 61

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 57

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 46

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F OTTIS K. BLACK D.B. 94E, PG. 69

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kitty Hawk, North Carolina 27949

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
S13° 14' 53"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N24° 32' 23"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
195.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N29° 20' 48"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
38°44'48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 33

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 65

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 36

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F BONNIE TAYLOR D.B. 326, PG. 75

AutoCAD SHX Text
S7° 40' 08"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
N79° 01' 20"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1451.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
146.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25°39'48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=200'



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
-D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
D

A
 M

ap
  (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

R
C

 P
o

st
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
 (

23
70

 :
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
N

o
rt

h
 R

iv
er

 C
ro

ss
in

g
 M

aj
o

r 
S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 (

U
D

O
 2

01
9-

02
-0

1)
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   March Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20190429162439545 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  March Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

6.A

Packet Pg. 38



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

42
91

62
43

95
45

  (
23

86
 :

 M
ar

ch
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

42
91

62
43

95
45

  (
23

86
 :

 M
ar

ch
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

42
91

62
43

95
45

  (
23

86
 :

 M
ar

ch
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

42
91

62
43

95
45

  (
23

86
 :

 M
ar

ch
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

42
91

62
43

95
45

  (
23

86
 :

 M
ar

ch
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

42
91

62
43

95
45

  (
23

86
 :

 M
ar

ch
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

42
91

62
43

95
45

  (
23

86
 :

 M
ar

ch
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution 2019-05-01 

 

Attachments: Resolution 2019-05-01 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

Attached is a resolution adopted by the Pasquotank and Currituck Boards of Commissioners at 

their recent meetings.  The resolution supports House Bill 541, which would amend NCGS 105-

275 to reduce the exclusion from 80% to 60% of the appraised value of solar energy electric 

systems from local ad valorem tax valuation, and require counties to spend 50% of the tax 

proceeds collected for public education and community college purposes.  Both Boards of 

Commissioners requested that Camden County consider adopting a similar resolution.   

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

6.B

Packet Pg. 46



 
 

Resolution 2019-05-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

SUPPORTING HOUSE BILL 541 TO REDUCE THE PROPERTY TAX EXCLUSION FOR 

SOLAR ENERGY ELECTRIC SYSTEMS AND ALLOCATE CERTAIN TAX PROCEEDS 

FOR PUBLIC EDUCATION PURPOSES 

 

 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §105-275(45) allows the exclusion of 

eighty percent (80%) of the appraised value of solar energy electric systems from local ad 

valorem tax valuation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, House Bill 541 would amend North Carolina General Statute §105-275(45) 

to reduce the exclusion from eighty percent (80%) to sixty percent (60%) of the appraised value 

of the solar energy electric systems from local ad valorem  tax valuation; and  

 

 WHEREAS, any community hosting solar energy electric systems should receive the full 

financial benefit of such development, Camden County would favor any legislation that will 

eliminate or reduce the property tax exclusion for solar energy electric systems; and 

 

 WHEREAS, upon passage of House Bill 541, Camden County would expect to receive 

an additional $32,226 in revenues; and 

 

 WHEREAS, House Bill 541 would require the County to spend fifty percent (50%) of 

the tax proceeds collected under North Carolina General Statute §105-275(45) for public 

education and community college purposes. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE IT BE RESOLVED by the Camden County Board of 

Commissioners, that Camden County requests that its legislative delegation support House Bill 

541 to reduce the local government property tax exclusion for solar energy electric systems. 

 

Adopted this, the 6th day of May, 2019. 

 

             

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners  

 

 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
05

-0
1 

 (
23

95
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

01
9-

05
-0

1)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.1 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Regional Advisory Council - Gwen Wescott 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

It is the request of the Albemarle Commission Area Agency on Aging (AAA) that Gwen Wescott 

be reappointed to the Regional Advisory Council as a representative for Camden County. 

Recommendation: 

Approve reappointment. 

7.1

Packet Pg. 48



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.2 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Albemarle Regional Library Board - Nona Smith 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Nona Smith be appointed to fill the vacancy created by the 

resignation of Nell Morrison on the Albemarle Regional Library Board. 

Recommendation: 

Approve appointment. 

7.2

Packet Pg. 49



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.3 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Community Advisory Committee - Clarann Mansfield 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Clarann Mansfield be reappointed to the Adult Care Home 

Community Advisory Committee for an additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approve reappointment. 

7.3

Packet Pg. 50



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.1 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - February 28, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_022819 (DOCX) 

 

8.1

Packet Pg. 51



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Retreat Work Session 

February 28, 2019 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners met for a retreat work session on February 28, 

2019 at YMCA at The Pines in Elizabeth City, North Carolina. 

 

Present: Chairman Tom White, Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners Garry Meiggs 

and Randy Krainiak.  Absent: Commissioner Ross Munro 

 

Staff Present: County Manager Ken Bowman and Clerk to the Board Karen Davis.   

 

Chairman Tom White called the meeting to order at 8:45 AM.  The Board received information 

updates on the following.  No official action was taken. 

 

Project Updates/Information 

 Current Library Lease 

 Broadband Update – Curtiss Albany, Eastern Shore Communications 

 USDA Community Connect Grant 

 Planned Tower Locations 

 Residential Internet Services 

 Commercial Internet Services 

 Communication with Camden’s Citizens 

 Milltown Road Boat Ramp 

 Bid Packaged Being Prepared 

 Sawyer’s Creek VFD – Update on Building Repair 

 Courthouse Wastewater Treatment Facility 

 Estimated completion date of July 1, 2019 

 Rural Ready Sites Grant 

 $1.6M Grant 

 Upgrades to Camden Commerce Park & south Mills Wastewater Treatment Plan 

 Lagoon Liner Replacement 

 Completion Date Mid-March 2019 

 Camden Plantation 

 Boyd Homes – Ken Merner 

 1700 Homes, Golf Course, Commercial Shopping 

 Met with SMWA on February 13, 2019 

 Dollar General Shiloh 

 Estimated Opening June 2019 

 Cooperative Extension Office 

 Estimate for Demolition Work - $8500 

 Remove and dispose of asbestos siding 

 Demolition of the existing structure 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
28

19
  (

23
63

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

28
, 2

01
9)



 All debris removed and disposed of property 

 Includes disposal free 

 Vanguard Modular Building Systems 

 New air condition 

 New interior surfaces 

 New doors and windows 

 ADA-conforming restrooms 

 Handicap accessibility 

 Painting 

 Utility access is in close proximity to the proposed location.  Proposed units are 

commensurate with the use and size of land; minimal impact expected on 

activities adjacent to the site. 

 Contract – 5 years @ $1100.00 per month 

 Capital Improvement Program 

 Reviewed current status 

 

Proposed Projects 

 Parks and Recreation Community Park Building Expansion 

 County Complex 

 Viewed and discussed architectural renderings. 

 South Mills Water Association 

 Discussed way forward in provision of water to SMWA to increase capacity. 

 New High School 

 Two architect firms will attend the joint meeting of the Board of Commissioners 

and Board of Education on March 28, 2019. 

 2019-2020 Budget 

 Requested input from the Board of Commissioners on upcoming Budget.   

 First Tryon Advisors  

 David Cheatwood presented information on capital project lending options. 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman Tom White adjourned the work session 

at 3:00 PM. 

 

 

             

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
28

19
  (

23
63

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

28
, 2

01
9)

mailto:years@$1100.00


 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.2 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - March 28, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocboeminutes_032819 (DOCX) 

 

8.2

Packet Pg. 54



Joint Meeting 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  

Camden County Board of Education 

 March 28, 2019; 6:00 PM 

Camden County Public Library 

 

Call to Order 

A joint meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners and Camden County Board of 

Education was called to order by the respective Chairman and Vice Chairman on March 28, 2019 

at 6:00 PM at the Camden County Public Library.  The primary purpose of the meeting was to 

discuss the proposal of a facility study for a new high school in Camden County. 

 

Board Members Present 

Board of Commissioners: Chairman Tom White, Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners 

Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak, Ross Munro. 

 

Camden County Board of Education: Vice Chairman Jason Banks, Board Members Kevin Heath, 

Sissy Aydlett, Chris Purcell.  Absent: Chairman Christian Overton 

 

Pledge of Allegiance  

Those in attendance recited the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

Consideration of the Agenda 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs offered a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  The motion 

passed unanimously with five commissioners voting aye and no commissioner voting no. 

 

Welcome 

Board of Commissioners Chairman Tom White welcomed all those in attendance. 

 

Information Updates 

I. A presentation by Hayley Bowers and Bill Cram from M.B. Kahn Construction included 

the following: 

A. Brief Introduction of M.B. Kahn Construction Company 

B. Experience in Funding for Clients 

C. Facility Study Process 

1.Research 

2.On-Site Interviews & Site Assessment 

3.Analysis 

D. Budgeting 

E. Educational Programming 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

03
28

19
  (

23
64

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

M
ar

ch
 2

8,
 2

01
9)



F. Financial Modeling/Options 

 

The following points were addressed during the question/answer period: 

 Facility study can be completed in 3-4 months. 

 Total amount possible from grant is $15 million; have been granted just under $2.3.  As 

of right now there is no timeline according to DPI. 

 Most popular funding sources – publically supported referendums on property tax; over 

the last five years more of a trend toward sales tax referendums.   

 Approximate cost of facility study - $25,000 (charged for hours worked with a not-to-

exceed figure) 

 Facility study will include projected five-year school population. 

 Facility study will include evaluation of existing buildings for possible accommodation 

of growth. 

 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs offered a motion to move forward with the Facility Study provided 

that the Board of Education agrees to pay half of the cost of the study.  The motion passed 

unanimously with five commissioners voting aye and no commissioner voting no. 

 

The Board of Education decided by consensus to vote on the Facility Study at its April 11, 2019 

meeting. 

 

II. A presentation by Jimmy Hite of Hite Associates included the following: 

A. Brief Introduction of Hite Associates (K-12 Designers & Planners) 

B. Overview of Building Design 

1.Shape as a design principle 

2.Connectors 

3.Pitched roofs with overhangs 

4.Platform Technology 

C. Construction costs are sensitive to supply and demand 

D. Quality Interior Materials 

E. Presented Camden High School Concept 

1.147,770 square feet 

2.Steel frame with concrete block, brick veneer, metal roof 

3.Teracon recommends bridge lift of 4-5 feet 

4.If priced today, roughly $35 million including site work, building, fees, 

furniture & equipment 

 

Board of Education member Kevin Heath inquired as to the application for the second grant. 

 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

03
28

19
  (

23
64

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

M
ar

ch
 2

8,
 2

01
9)



Commissioner Garry Meiggs offered a motion that the Board of Education proceed in applying 

for the second grant.  The motion passed unanimously with five commissioners voting aye and 

no commissioner voting no. 

 

Board of Education member Kevin Heath offered a motion that the Board of Education proceed 

in applying for the second grant.  The motion was seconded by Sissy Aydlett.  The motion 

passed unanimously with four board members voting aye, no board member voting no and one 

board member absent.   

 

Board of Education member Jason Banks inquired as to placing the Bond Referendum for a new 

high school on the 2020 ballot.   

 

Chairman White explained that he is of the opinion that it is too soon to make that decision.   

 

County Manager Ken Bowman cautioned against putting the bond referendum on the ballot too 

soon as the citizens will need to understand the tax increase implications. 

 

Dr. Ferrell reiterated that the Board of Education will vote on the facility study at its meeting on 

April 11, 2019.   

 

Chairman White suggested that another joint meeting be scheduled upon completion of the 

facility study. 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Board of Education Vice Chairman Jason Banks 

entertained a motion to adjourn.  Sissy Aydlett offered a motion to adjourn.  The motion was 

seconded by Kevin Heath.  The motion passed unanimously with four board members voting 

aye, no board member voting no and one board member absent. 

 

Commissioner Randy Krainiak offered a motion to adjourn.  The motion passed unanimously 

with five commissioners voting aye and no commissioner voting no. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:20 PM. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

03
28

19
  (

23
64

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

M
ar

ch
 2

8,
 2

01
9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.3 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - April 1, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_040119 (DOCX) 

 

8.3

Packet Pg. 58



1 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 1 

April 1, 2019 2 

Closed Session – 6:00 PM 3 

Regular Meeting – 7:00 PM 4 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 5 

Camden, North Carolina 6 

 7 

MINUTES 8 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on April 1, 2019 in 9 

the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  10 

 11 

CALL TO ORDER  12 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 6:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice 13 

Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, and Randy Krainiak.  Absent for the 14 

Closed Session: Ross Munro. 15 

 16 

Staff Present: County Manager Ken Bowman, County Attorney John Morrison, Clerk to the 17 

Board Karen Davis. 18 

 19 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss economic development and to consult with the 20 

county attorney in regard to possible litigation. 21 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 22 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 23 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs 24 
ABSENT: Ross Munro 25 

  26 

Motion to come out of Closed Session. 27 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 28 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 29 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs 30 
ABSENT: Ross Munro 31 

  32 

At 6:50 PM Chairman Tom White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners until 33 

7:00 PM. 34 

 35 

At 7:00 PM Chairman White reconvened the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and 36 

welcomed those in attendance.   37 

Commissioner Ross Munro was present for the Regular Meeting. 38 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



2 

 

Additional Staff Present for Regular Meeting:  Interim Finance Officer Sally Norfleet, Tax 39 

Administrator Lisa Anderson, Public Works Director David Credle, Director of Elections Elaine 40 

Best, Soil & Water Specialist Brian Lannon. 41 

 42 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 43 
Pastor Kevin Buzzard gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 44 

 45 

ITEM 1. PUBLIC COMMENTS        46 

 47 

None. 48 

 49 

ITEM 2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT    50 

 51 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict Of Interest Disclosure Statement. 52 

 53 

ITEM 3. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        54 

 55 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 56 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 57 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 58 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 59 

  60 

ITEM 4. PRESENTATIONS          61 

 62 

1. 2019 Spring Litter Sweep – Brenda Bowman presented an update on the April 13-27, 63 

2019 Spring Litter Sweep in Camden County.  First grade students from Grandy Primary 64 

School were performed a Litter Sweep song and presented the commissioners with safety 65 

vests and cleanup tools. 66 

2. Department Update – Board of Elections Director Elaine Best gave an update from Board 67 

of Elections. 68 

3. Employee Recognition – The following employees were recognized for recent 69 

accomplishments: 70 

 Soil & Water Conservation Specialist Brain Lannon – Recipient of the Bobby 71 

Brock Soil Health Award from the NC Soil & Water Conservation Society. 72 

 Clerk to the Board Karen Davis – Received designation as a North Carolina 73 

Certified County Clerk at the Annual North Carolina Association of County 74 

Clerks Conference in March 2019. 75 

 76 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 77 

 78 

Chairman White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and called to order the 79 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting. 80 

 81 

Public Comments – None 82 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



3 

 

 83 

Consideration of the Agenda 84 

 85 

 86 
 87 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 88 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 89 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 90 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 91 

  92 

New Business 93 

 94 

A. Monthly Report 95 

 96 

Public Works Director David Credle presented the monthly report for February 2019 and the 12-97 

month report. 98 

 99 

 100 
 101 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



4 

 

 102 
 103 

Mr. Credle also gave the following updates: 104 

 The lagoon liner replacement project has been completed. 105 

 The new wastewater treatment facility: 106 

 High-rate infiltration pond dug out; backfilled with sand. 107 

 Building erected. 108 

 Electrical, plumbing, heat/air roughed in. 109 

 Lab framing complete. 110 

 Bathroom complete. 111 

 Sheetrock currently being installed. 112 

 113 

 114 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 115 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 116 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 117 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 118 

  119 

Motion to adjourn the meeting of the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 120 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 121 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 122 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 123 

  124 

Chairman White adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors and 125 

reconvened the Camden County Board of Commissioners. 126 

 127 

ITEM 5. NEW BUSINESS          128 

 129 

A. Land Conveyance Request – Amber Simonds 130 

 131 

Mrs. Simonds read the following prepared statement to the Board: 132 

 133 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



5 

 

My name is Amber Simonds, Wife of Chris Simonds, of Burnt Mills. He is son of the late Lem 134 

Simonds Jr., of Burnt Mills.  Lem is the son of the late Lem Simonds, Sr., also of Burnt Mills.  135 

His father is the late Fletcher Simonds, also of Burnt Mills.  The Simonds lineage stretches over 136 

100 years in this area and our family cemetery is directly behind our property on Lake Road.   137 

 138 

April 2015, Lem Jr. passed unexpectedly.  Four days before our daughter, Jackson Simonds, was 139 

born.  From his passing, Chris’ mother was reliant on her own income to maintain the home.  To 140 

continue the legacy on Lake Road we decided to sell our home in Elizabeth City and buy the 141 

property from Chris’ mother, relieving her of the debt. 142 

 143 

We have lived in the same home since May 2016 and we are ready to branch out and build in the 144 

near future.  In a meeting with Farm Credit, we will need a separate deeded property in order to 145 

build our home.  No one deeded property can have multiple mortgaged homes.  We have 146 

received an estimate to pull 2 acres of the 6.5 acres in our deed for our separate build and 147 

residence.  In speaking to the County Planner, it seems a land conveyance for a family 148 

subdivision is our only reasonable option to start our build process.  According to the current 149 

UDO; Article 151.2, Section 2.3, Transfer plat 2.3.23, we would have to convey the property to 150 

an immediate family member for possession of five years before they can convey it back to us in 151 

order to start building our forever home. 152 

 153 

I ask the board to revisit this ordinance for our family situation.  With our intent and footprint in 154 

the area, we aren’t leaving.  We would like to deed the separation to ourselves in order to build 155 

within the next year. 156 

 157 

Commissioner Meiggs expressed his desire for the Board to be able to assist this family with the 158 

request. 159 

 160 

County Attorney Morrison explained that the Board may or may not have the authority to grant 161 

the request based on the law.   162 

 163 

Chairman White stated that the County Manager would look into the situation further, along with 164 

the Planning Department, to see what, if anything can be done. 165 

 166 

B. Bid Tabulation & Recommendation for HMGP Management Company 167 

 168 

Emergency Management Coordinator Christy Saunders presented the following to the Board: 169 

 170 

Camden County has received three grant Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMPG) grants from 171 

Hurricane Matthew, one for the acquisition of five (5) residential properties, another for the 172 

acquisition of one (1) residential property (this was originally requested to be an elevation but had 173 

to be moved to acquisition due to the property being located within the floodway) and one for the 174 

demolition/reconstruction of two (2) properties.  These grants are funded 75% Federal share and 175 

25% State share.  Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for turnkey professional project 176 

implementation and management services were publicized in October, 2018 (with no response) 177 

and again in February, 2019 (with two responses).  Pasquotank-Camden Emergency Management 178 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



6 

 

and the Camden County Manager have reviewed the proposals and requests the Board of 179 

Commissioners award the contract to Holland Consulting Planners, Inc. 180 

 181 

 182 
 183 

 184 
 185 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



7 

 

Motion to approve the bid award to Holland Consulting Planners, Inc. 186 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 187 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 188 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 189 

  190 

C. Tax Report  191 

 192 

Tax Administrator Lisa Anderson presented the tax report for February 2019. 193 

 194 

 195 
 196 

 197 

 198 

 199 

 200 

 201 

 202 

 203 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



8 

 

 204 
 205 

 206 

 207 
 208 

 209 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



9 

 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 210 

 211 
 212 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 213 

 214 
 215 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 216 

 217 
 218 

 219 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



10 

 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 220 

 221 
 222 

Motion to approve the monthly tax report as presented. 223 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 224 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 225 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 226 

  227 
D. 2018 Advertisement of Tax Liens on Real Property 228 

 229 

 230 
 231 

 232 

 233 

 234 

 235 

 236 

 237 

 238 

 239 

 240 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



11 

 

 241 

 242 
 243 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



12 

 

 244 
 245 

 246 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



13 

 

 247 
 248 

 249 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



14 

 

 250 
 251 

 252 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



15 

 

 253 
 254 

 255 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



16 

 

 256 
 257 

 258 

Motion to accept the report from the tax administrator that as of March 25, 2019 the total 259 

amount of unpaid taxes for the current fiscal year that are liens on real property is 260 

$260,027.54 and that this figure shall change over time with collections and releases. 261 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 262 
MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 263 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 264 

 265 

Motion to set the 2018 tax liens on real property advertising date of April 30, 2019. 266 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 267 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 268 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 269 

 270 
E. 2019 Board of Equalization and Review 271 

 272 

Motion to convene the 2019 Board of Equalization and Review on May 6, 2019 and adjourn 273 

on June 3, 2019. 274 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 275 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 276 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 277 

 278 

F. Standing Objection to Waiver of Court Costs and Fines 279 

 280 

Legislation has been passed to allow agencies who are recipients of court costs and fines to 281 

object to waiving of these fees.  The initial requirement was for counsel to attend proceedings to 282 

object.  It was not a feasible option for the county to have an attorney attend all proceedings.  283 

The AOC created a process to register a standing objection by having the county attorney file to 284 

the Government Agency Standing Response to Waiver/Remission of Court Costs and Fines. 285 

 286 

 287 

 288 

 289 

 290 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



17 

 

 291 
 292 

 293 

Motion to direct Attorney Morrison to register the Standing Response to 294 

Waiver/Remission of Court Costs and Fines filing with the AOC. 295 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 296 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 297 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 298 

  299 

 300 

 301 

 302 

 303 

 304 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



18 

 

G. Camden Heritage Festival 305 

 306 

Christy Cooper, Treasurer of the Camden Festival Committee, Inc., included the following in her 307 

remarks to the Board: 308 

 Camden Heritage Festival to take place Saturday, May 9, 2020; 10:00 AM – 8:00 309 

PM.  Rain date: Sunday, May 10, 2020; Noon – 8:00 PM. 310 

 Camden Festival Committee, Inc. - A group of approximately 20 Camden citizens 311 

have held two organizational meetings with a commitment of serving in various 312 

leadership roles.  The following county departments and other groups have attended 313 

the meetings and have committed to partner for the festival:  The Camden County 314 

Sheriff’s Department, Camden County Parks & Recreation, South Mills & Camden 315 

Volunteer Fire Departments, Pasquotank/Camden EMS, Camden Heritage Museum, 316 

the Dismal Swamp Welcome Center, the Camden Library, the Camden County 317 

Women’s Club, as well as local scout troops and churches. 318 

 Mission Statement, Purpose, Proposed Activities of the Camden Festival Committee 319 

 501(c)4 Non-Profit Organizational Meeting Held March 14, 2019 320 

 Elected Officers: Randy Krainiak, President; Brenda Bowman, Vice President; 321 

Rhiana Srebro, Secretary; Christy Cooper, Treasurer. 322 

 IRS EIN# obtained March 11, 2019. 323 

 Bylaws & Budget adopted March 14, 2019. 324 

 Requests to the Board: 325 

 $1,000 to cover fees necessary to file the appropriate organizational 326 

paperwork.  The Committee will be able to begin soliciting sponsorships for 327 

the festival immediately upon filing documents with the IRS & NC Secretary 328 

of State. 329 

 Articles of Incorporation to be filed with NC Secretary of State by 330 

John Morrison, Registered Agent, upon receipt of $50 fee. 331 

 IRS Notice of Intent to Operate under Section 501(c)4 to be filed with 332 

$60 fee. 333 

 Application for Recognition of Exemption as a 501(c)4 to be filed with 334 

$600 fee. 335 

 Balance to cover administrative costs such as computer paper, ink, and 336 

office supplies. 337 

 All paperwork must be filed within 60 days of organization meeting which took place 338 

on March 14, 2019. 339 

 340 

Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs offered a motion to approve a budget appropriation of up to 341 

$1,000 to support the Camden Heritage Festival Committee.   342 

 343 
Commissioner Krainiak had not yet been recused from the vote so Vice Chairman Riggs 344 

withdrew his motion. 345 

 346 

Commissioner Krainiak requested that the Board recuse him from voting in that he is an officer 347 

of the Camden Festival Committee. 348 

 349 

 350 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



19 

 

Motion to recuse Commissioner Randy Krainiak from discussion and voting on the request 351 

of the Camden Festival Committee. 352 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 353 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 354 
AYES: White, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 355 
RECUSED: Randy Krainiak 356 

  357 
Commissioner Krainiak stepped down from the dais and did not participate in the discussion or 358 

vote in regard to the Camden Festival Committee. 359 

 360 

Motion to appropriate up to $1,000 for the Camden Festival Committee.   361 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 362 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 363 
AYES: White, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 364 
RECUSED: Randy Krainiak 365 

 366 

H. Finance Officer Appointment 367 

 368 

County Manager Ken Bowman explained that upon completion of a series of interviews for a 369 

county Finance Officer, the interview committee offered a recommendation for appointment. 370 

 371 

Chairman White announced that Interim Finance Officer Sally Norfleet was recommended for 372 

appointment as Finance Officer for Camden County. 373 

 374 

Motion to appoint Sally Norfleet as Finance Officer for Camden County.  375 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 376 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 377 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 378 

 379 

Chairman White stated that Mrs. Norfleet’s appointment would be effective immediately. 380 

 381 

I. Proclamation – 2019 Spring Litter Sweep 382 

 383 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



20 

 

 384 
 385 

 386 

Motion to adopt the 2019 Spring Litter Sweep Proclamation. 387 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 388 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 389 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 390 

  391 

 392 
 393 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



21 

 

ITEM 6. BOARD APPOINTMENTS         394 

 395 

1. Gregg Stewart – Reappointment to the Camden Economic Development Commission 396 

2. Nathan Lilley – Appointment to the Planning Board 397 

3. Donna Harrell – Appointment to the Community Advisory Committee 398 

 399 

Motion to approve the board appointments as presented. 400 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 401 
MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 402 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 403 

  404 

ITEM 7. CONSENT AGENDA         405 

 406 

The Consent Agenda was amended with the removal of Item 7.11 – Set Public Hearing on 407 

Ordinance 2019-03-01. 408 

 409 

1. BOC Meeting Minutes – March 4, 2019 410 

 411 

2. Budget Amendments 412 

 413 

 414 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



22 

 

 415 
 416 

 417 

 418 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



23 

 

 419 
 420 

 421 

 422 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



24 

 

 423 
 424 

 425 

 426 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



25 

 

 427 
 428 

 429 

 430 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



26 

 

3. School Budget Amendments 431 

 432 

 433 
 434 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



27 

 

 435 
 436 

 437 

 438 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



28 

 

 439 
 440 

 441 

 442 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



29 

 

 443 
 444 

 445 

 446 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



30 

 

 447 
 448 

 449 

 450 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



31 

 

 451 
 452 

 453 

 454 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



32 

 

 455 
 456 

 457 

 458 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



33 

 

 459 
 460 

 461 

 462 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



34 

 

 463 
 464 

 465 

 466 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



35 

 

 467 
 468 

 469 

 470 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



36 

 

 471 
 472 

 473 

 474 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



37 

 

 475 
 476 

 477 

 478 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



38 

 

 479 
 480 

 481 

 482 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



39 

 

 483 
 484 

 485 

 486 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



40 

 

 487 
 488 

4. Tax Collection Report 489 

 490 

 491 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



41 

 

5. DMV Report 492 

 493 

 494 
 495 

 496 

 497 

 498 

 499 

 500 

 501 

 502 

 503 

 504 

 505 

 506 

 507 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



42 

 

6. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 508 

 509 

 510 
 511 

 512 

7. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 513 

 514 

 515 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



43 

 

8. Budget Appropriation – Harmony Café  516 

 517 

 518 
 519 

 520 

 521 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



44 

 

9. DPS – Probation and Parole Office Space 522 

 523 

 524 
 525 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



45 

 

 526 
 527 

 528 

 529 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



46 

 

 530 
 531 

 532 

 533 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



47 

 

 534 
 535 

 536 
 537 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



48 

 

 538 
 539 

10. Surplus Property – Sheriff 540 

 541 

 542 
 543 

 544 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



49 

 

11. Set Public Hearing – Ordinance 2019-03-01 – Removed from agenda. 545 

 546 

12. Set Public Hearing – Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing 547 

 548 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as amended. 549 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 550 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 551 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 552 

 553 

ITEM 8. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT       554 

 555 

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 556 

 557 

 Initial budget meetings have been completed with Department Heads. 558 

 Preconstruction meeting to be held on April 3, 2019 for the roadway extension for 559 

Camden Commerce Park Project. 560 

 Dollar General in Shiloh – Grand Opening on Saturday, April 6, 2019 at 8 AM. 561 

 Board of Commissioners Budget/Finance/CIP Work Session – April 9, 2019 at 2:00 562 

PM in the Historic Courtroom. 563 

 County Offices Closed on Good Friday, April 19, 2019. 564 

 County Assembly Day – Possible date change to May 8, 2019 in Raleigh. 565 

 Sarah Hill, Dismal Swam Visitors Center, has received a full scholarship worth 566 

$1,600 to attend the Southeast Tourism Marketing College in Dahlonega, Georgia 567 

May 12-17, 2019.  This is her second year of classes.  She obtained a partial 568 

scholarship last year. 569 

 The next regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners – May 6, 2019 at 7:00 PM. 570 

 571 

ITEM 9. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS        572 

 573 

 Chairman White requested that any commissioner who is unable to locate his county 574 

identification badge to inform Stephanie Jackson to receive a replacement.  The 575 

identification badges are required in the event of an emergency to re-enter the county. 576 

 Commissioner Krainiak encouraged attendance at the 74th Annual Albemarle Area 4-H 577 

Livestock Show and Sale to take place April 23-24, 2019. 578 

 579 

ITEM 10. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES  580 

 581 

The following items were provided to the commissioners for information purposes: 582 

 583 

A. FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report 584 

B. Register of Deeds Report 585 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



50 

 

C. Library Report 586 

 587 

ITEM 11. OTHER MATTERS          588 

 589 

None. 590 

 591 

ITEM 12. ADJOURN           592 

 593 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 594 

 595 

Motion to adjourn. 596 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 597 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 598 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 599 

 600 

Chairman White adjourned the April 1, 2019 meeting of the Board of Commissioners at 8:17 601 

PM.  602 

 603 

                                                                           __________________________________ 604 

                                                                           Tom White, Chairman 605 

                                                                           Camden County Board of Commissioners 606 

ATTEST: 607 

 608 

____________________________ 609 

Karen M. Davis 610 

Clerk to the Board 611 

8.3.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
01

19
  (

23
68

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 1
, 2

01
9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.4 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - April 8, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_040819 (DOCX) 

 

8.4

Packet Pg. 109



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 8, 2019 – 2:00 PM 

2019-2020 Budget/Finance/CIP Work Session 

Historic Courtroom 

Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners held a budget work session on April 8, 2019 at 

2:00 PM in the Historic Courtroom. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 2:00 PM.  Additional Board 

members present: Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak 

and Ross Munro. 

 

Staff Present: County Manager Ken Bowman, Finance Officer Sally Norfleet and Clerk to the 

Board Karen Davis. 

 

The following items were presented to the Board for discussion: 

 

1. Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Update 

a. Broadband – Eastern Shore Communications (in process)  

b. Administration Building – Rendering and Cost estimates complete  

c. New High School – Feasibility Study (consensus to change to New School) 

d. Road Improvement at Commerce Park – Awarded to Whitehurst Sand, Inc. 

e. Sidewalk Along Highway 158 from Camden County High School to Dollar 

General (consensus to add to CIP; also include maintenance) 

f. New Freshwater Well (consensus to add to CIP) 

 

2. School Funding 

a. School Resource Officer – 3rd SRO (Budget) 

b. Grant Match ($762,000/School Planning) 

c. School’s Fund Balance (Minimum/Maximum) 

d. Budget Request 

 

3. IT Software / Hardware Updates 

a. Tax / Utility  

b. Microsoft Office / Server Upgrade 

 

4. Insurance, Benefits & Personnel Requests 

a. Health (>10.0%), Retirement (>1.2%) / Law Enforcement (>1.2%) 

b. Position Requests / Salary Increases 

8.4.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
08

19
  (

23
69

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 8
, 2

01
9)



c. COLA 2%; Certification Increases 

d. Salary Review 

e. Finance Officer – Local Government Certification 

 

5. Additional Expenditures 

a. Vehicles 

i. Sheriff – 3 (1 for dog handler / 2 cruisers) 

ii. Inspections – 1 (small pickup) 

iii. Buildings and Grounds and Solid Waste – 2 (1 – F250 / 1 – F150) 

b. Salary/Vacation Payouts – Greg Gregory and Tommy McDaniel (approximately 

$10K) 

c. Capital Outlay – Courthouse / Senior Center / Sheriff Building - $37K 

d. Carpet in Tax / Water / Planning - $13K 

e. Medical Building – Remove Wallpaper / Sand / Paint - $29K 

f. Public Works – 1 tractor with mower (consensus to look into a contract for 

mowing) 

g. Property & Liability – (+3%) 

h. Workers’ Compensation – (+5) 

i. Miscellaneous Annual Increases (EMS, CC/EM, Technology Leases, etc.) 

i. Appropriations 

1. COA – Reduce to $35K 

2. Harmony Café - $500 

3. Hwy 17 / 64 - $2K 

4. NCAlliance - $2K 

5. EMS – 3% Increase 

6. Central Communications / Emergency Management - $2K 

7. DSS Building Upgrade - $14K (carpet and paint) 

8. Planning – Fee Restructure 

9. Museum - $1K 

 

6. Revenues 

a. 19-20 Projections – None to date 

b. Fund Balances - $6.5M 

c. Solid Waste Fee – Solid Waste Fee (Proposed @ $75.00 per household per year) 

Collection through Tax Department 

 

Other Matters Discussed 

 Increased Emphasis on Safety Training 

 Solar Inspections – Include propane along with natural gas 

 

Upcoming Meetings 

 May 2, 2019; 2:00 PM – Select Departments and Budget Review 

 May 23, 2019; 6:00 PM – Budget Review 

8.4.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
08

19
  (

23
69

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 8
, 2

01
9)



 June 3, 2019; 7:00 PM – Public Hearing and Budget Adoption 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Motion to adjourn. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Chairman White adjourned the work session at 4:30 PM. 

 

 

             

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board 

8.4.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

04
08

19
  (

23
69

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 8
, 2

01
9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.5 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

8.5

Packet Pg. 113



8.5.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
91

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.5.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
91

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.6 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Schools 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

8.6

Packet Pg. 116



8.6.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
74

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.6.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
74

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.6.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
74

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.6.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
74

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.6.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
74

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.6.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
74

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.6.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
74

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.6.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
74

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.6.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
74

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.6.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
74

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.6.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
74

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.7 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

8.7

Packet Pg. 128



8.7.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

23
76

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.8 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20190405132008625.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report June, 2019 Renewals due 7/15/19 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.8

Packet Pg. 130



8.8.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

40
51

32
00

86
25

.p
d

f 
 (

23
62

 :
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.9 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: 20190402141531489.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.9

Packet Pg. 132



8.9.a

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

40
21

41
53

14
89

.p
d

f 
 (

23
60

 :
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.10 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: 20190402141540210.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.10

Packet Pg. 134



8.10.a

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

40
21

41
54

02
10

.p
d

f 
 (

23
61

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.11 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   FY 19-20 Revised Annual Budget & CIP Calendar 

 

Attachments: Calendar FY19-20 (DOCX) 

 

8.11

Packet Pg. 136



CAMDEN COUNTY FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 
ANNUAL BUDGET & CIP CALENDAR 

 

  Revised 4/10/19 

 

DATE                                                       PROCEDURE                                         ACTION BY 

 
March 1 Budget Officer & Finance Officer meet to    County Manager 
                                       discuss this year’s priorities                                       Finance Officer 
 
March 8 Budget Workbooks Available for Department       County Manager 
 Heads and County Agencies to pick up    Finance Officer  
  
March 15 All 2019-2023 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)      Department Heads 
 requests are due to County Manager’s Office   Bd. Of Education 
     
March 18-22 Meet with Departments as requested by    County Manager 
 Department Heads or County Manager   Department Heads 
 
April 1 Deadline to submit New Position Requests   Department Heads 
 and Other Position Changes for FY18-19  
 to Personnel Office  
 
April 1 All Final Budget Requests from County   Department Heads 
 Departments due in County Manager’s 
 Office by 5:00 P.M. (G.S. 159-10) 
 
April 5 All Final Budget Requests from Fire Districts      Fire Districts & Non- 
 and Non-County Organizations due in County     County Organizations 
 Manager’s office by 5:00 P.M. (G.S. 159-10) 
 
April 8 Budget & Finance Work Session, 2:00 P.M.   Budget & Finance Officer 
    Bd. of Commissioners 
 
April 8 2020-2024 CIP Work Session, 3:00 P.M.   County Manager 
             Bd. of Commissioners 
 
April 8 Estimated Tax Valuation Due   Tax Administrator  
  
April 12 Revenue Estimates Due   Finance Officer  
 
April 23 Camden County Board of Education’s Final             School Board  
 Proposed Budget due in County Manager’s  

 
April 25 Compile Budget Requests & deliver to    Finance Officer 
 County Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

 

8.11.a

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

al
en

d
ar

 F
Y

19
-2

0 
 (

23
80

 :
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 R
ev

is
ed

 A
n

n
u

al
 B

u
d

g
et

 &
 C

IP
 C

al
en

d
ar

)



CAMDEN COUNTY FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 
ANNUAL BUDGET & CIP CALENDAR 

 

  Revised 4/10/19 

 

DATE                                                       PROCEDURE                                            ACTION BY 

 
April 25-26 Review and Analyze Budget Requests   County Manager 
 
April 30 Budget Meeting, 3:00 PM     County Manager 
 Manager’s Office         Finance Officer 
 
May 2  Budget Work Session (Courtroom, 2:00 PM)           Board of County 
            Commissioners 
 
May 2-3 Review Budget Requests with Department      County Manager  
 Heads as requested by Budget Officer          Finance Officer 
 
May 6 Set Public Hearing on Budget (G. S. 159-12(A))       Clerk to Board  
 & Public Hearing on CIP (Not statutorily required) 
 
May 6-10 Compile Budget Document & Budget Message  County Manager 
 for presentation to Commissioners    Finance Officer 
 
May 10 Budget & CIP Available to BOC/Public    County Manager 
 Advertise Budget & CIP available to Public   Clerk to Board 
 
 
May 23  Budget Work Session (Courtroom, 6:00 PM)   Board of County 
    Commissioners 
 
June 3                            Public hearing(s) on FY 18-19 Budget (& CIP)        Board of County 
 (Courtroom, 7pm)         Commissioners 
 
June 3 Consideration of Budget Ordinance   Board of County 
 (G.S. 159-13:A) & Consideration of CIP    Commissioners 
 (Courtroom, 7pm)   
  
June 10 Adoption of Budget Ordinance &   Board of County 
 Adoption of CIP if not approved June 3   Commissioners 
 (Courtroom, 7pm)   
 
June 17 Special Meeting to adopt budget if needed                 Board of County 
    Commissioners      
 
June 28 File Copies of Adopted Budget with County          Budget Officer 
 Finance Officer and Clerk (G.S. 159-13(d)) 

8.11.a

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

al
en

d
ar

 F
Y

19
-2

0 
 (

23
80

 :
 F

Y
 1

9-
20

 R
ev

is
ed

 A
n

n
u

al
 B

u
d

g
et

 &
 C

IP
 C

al
en

d
ar

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.12 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   2018-2019 Audit Contracts 

 

Attachments: Camden County Audit Engagement Letter (PDF) 

Camden County Audit Contract (PDF) 

TDA Audit Engagement Letter (PDF) 

TDA Audit Contract (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Contracts with Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Company for County and TDA Audit Contracts 

for 2018-2019 Fiscal Year 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

8.12

Packet Pg. 139



8.12.a

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.a

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.a

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.a

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.a

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.a

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.a

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.b

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.b

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.b

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.b

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.b

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.b

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.b

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.b

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.c

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.c

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.c

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.c

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.c

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.c

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.c

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

23
79

 :
 2

01
8-

20
19

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

)



8.12.d

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.d

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.d

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.d

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.d

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.d

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.d

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



8.12.d

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
23

79
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.13 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   Estimated Property Values 

 

Attachments: 20190430084509823 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  Estimated Property Values 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

8.13

Packet Pg. 172



8.13.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

43
00

84
50

98
23

  (
23

89
 :

 E
st

im
at

ed
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 V
al

u
es

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.14 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   DSVC Funding Extension 

 

Attachments: Funding Request Extension 2019-2020 (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Request to extend Dismal Swamp Visitor Center funding agreement.  The funding agreement 

currently in place provides $142,857 for operating the DSVC and will continue at the same level.  

This request is for approval of the extension of the current agreement. 

Recommendation: 

Approve Finance Officer to sign as County Representative to concur with the funding 

agreement extension as requested. 

8.14

Packet Pg. 174



8.14.a

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t 

E
xt

en
si

o
n

 2
01

9-
20

20
  (

23
78

 :
 D

S
V

C
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.15 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   HMGP Contract - Holland Consulting Planners, Inc. 

 

Attachments: HMGP Contract - Holland Consulting Planners, Inc.

 (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

At its April 1, 2019 meeting, the Board of Commissioners approved the awarding of the HMGP 

Management Company contract to Holland Consulting Planners.  The contract is attached. 

Recommendation: 

Approve. 

8.15

Packet Pg. 176



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



8.15.a

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

M
G

P
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
- 

H
o

lla
n

d
 C

o
n

su
lt

in
g

 P
la

n
n

er
s,

 In
c.

  (
23

84
 :

 H
M

G
P

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

- 
H

o
lla

n
d

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 P

la
n

n
er

s,
 In

c.
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.16 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - FY 2019-2020 Budget 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Set Public Hearing for FY 2019-2020 Budget as required by NCGS 159-12(b) for June 3, 2019. 

Recommendation: 

Set hearing date. 

8.16

Packet Pg. 189



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.17 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Plan 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Set Public Hearing for 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for June 3, 2019. 

Recommendation: 

Set hearing date. 

8.17

Packet Pg. 190



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.18 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-03-01 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-03-01

 (DOC) 

Staff Report Findings (PDF) 

Principal Use Table - HC vs VR (DOCX) 

2019-03-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning 

Map - Keeter Barn

 (DOC) 

 

See attached summary and supporting documentation. 

8.18

Packet Pg. 191



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Item Number:  

     

Meeting Date:   May 6, 2019 

Attachments:   Ordinance/Findings/Planning Board  

   Recommendation  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

ITEM TITLE:  Set Public hearing - Ordinance 2019-03-
01; Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-03-
04) for Keeter Barn, LLC 

 
SUMMARY: 
 

 Keeter Barn, LLC (Managers Chad Williams and Alex Underhill) met with planning staff on rezoning of 

the property located at the intersection of U.S. 17 and Keeter Barn Road to a zoning classification that 

would make the property more marketable.   

 

Neighborhood meeting was held March 1, 2019 at the South Mills Fire Station (comments included in 

attached staff report). 

 

Planning Board met on March 20, 2019 and discussed with applicant and staff concerning Future Interstate 

87 and its possible affects to the property, the South Mills Fire Station landing pad concerning the safety 

zone for approaching helicopter’s with the possible location of structures (commercial and residential) that 

could affect the flight path.   Planning Staff stated that both issues could be concerns with the allowed uses 

in the existing zoning of Highway Commercial as well as the proposed zoning request of Village 

Residential (VR) and could be further discussed when a proposed site plan is submitted for review.  After 

discussion, Planning Board made the following motions:  

 

(1) Consistency Statement:    

 

The existing zoning and requested zoning are inconsistent with both the CAMA and 

Comprehensive plans as both plans identify property as low density residential.   At the time both 

plans were adopted sewer availability was either nonexistent or the use of was focused within the 

villages where available.    

 

Excerpt from Comprehensive Plan – Vision Statement 

 

“New development will be focused within targeted core areas to breathe new life into established 

county villages and to efficiently use existing and planned infrastructure and public resources. 

New housing choices will be made available to serve families, young professionals, and retirees. 

Rural areas will maintain prominence in the county, and will continue to serve agricultural and 

forestry production and low density residential development.” 

Also, the requested zoning is supported by several action strategies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

(2) Recommendation:  Motion was made to recommend approval Rezoning Application (UDO 

2019-03-04) , rezoning property from Highway Commercial (HC) to Village Residential (VR).  

Motion passed on a 5-0 vote. 
 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 

R. Munro        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 
R. Munro        ____ 
ABSENT         ____ 
RECUSED      ____ 
 

8.18.a

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
 (

23
93

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1)



 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Set Public Hearing for June 3, 2019. 

8.18.a

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
 (

23
93

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 199

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 201

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 206

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 208

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 209

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 210

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 211

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 212

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 213

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 214

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 215

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 216

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 217

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 218

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



8.18.b

Packet Pg. 219

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 F
in

d
in

g
s 

 (
23

93
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1)



CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL USE TABLE, DISTRICT COMPARISON 

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL VS VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL 
 

USE CLASS MAIN CATEGORY CATEGORY HC VR 
 

Page 1 of 3 

Agricultural AGRICULTURE/HORTICULTURE All Agriculture/ Horticulture Uses P  

Agricultural ANIMAL HUSBANDRY Animal Husbandry Uses (excluding 
stockyards and slaughterhouses) 

  

Agricultural ANIMAL HUSBANDRY Stockyard/Slaughterhouse   

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Agricultural Research Facility P  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Agri-Education/ Agri-Entertainment S  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Distribution Hub for Agriculture Products P  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Equestrian Facility S  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Farm Machinery Sales, Rental, or Service S  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Farmers Market P  

Agricultural AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT Roadside Market P  

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Bungalow Court  P 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Duplex  P 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Live/Work Dwelling  P 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Manufactured Home   

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Manufactured Home or Mobile Home 
Park 

  

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Mobile Home   

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Multi-Family S  

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Pocket Neighborhood  P 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Quadraplex P  

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Single-Family Attached S S 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Single-Family Detached  P 

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Triplex P  

Residential HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES Upper Story Residential P  

Residential GROUP LIVING Dormitory S  

Residential GROUP LIVING Family Care Home  P 

Residential GROUP LIVING Group Home S  

Residential GROUP LIVING Rooming House S  

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Community Center P S 

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Cultural Facility S S 

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Library P  

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Museum P  

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Senior Center P P 

Institutional COMMUNITY SERVICES Youth Club Facility P S 

Institutional DAY CARE Adult Day Care Center P S 

Institutional DAY CARE Child Care Center P P 

Institutional EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES Major S  

Institutional EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES Moderate P S 

Institutional EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES Minor P P 

Institutional GOVERNMENT FACILITIES Government Office P  

Institutional GOVERNMENT FACILITIES Government Maintenance, Storage, or 
Distribution Facility 

P  

Institutional HEALTH CARE FACILITIES Drug or Alcohol Treatment Facility S  

Institutional HEALTH CARE FACILITIES Hospital S  

Institutional HEALTH CARE FACILITIES Medical Treatment Facility P S 

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Assisted Living Facility S S 

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Club or Lodge P S 

8.18.c

Packet Pg. 220

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ri
n

ci
p

al
 U

se
 T

ab
le

 -
 H

C
 v

s 
V

R
  (

23
93

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1)



CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL USE TABLE, DISTRICT COMPARISON 

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL VS VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL 
 

USE CLASS MAIN CATEGORY CATEGORY HC VR 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Halfway House S  

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Nursing Home S  

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Psychiatric Treatment Facility S  

Institutional INSTITUTIONS Religious Institution P S 

Institutional PARKS AND OPEN AREAS Cemetery S S 

Institutional PARKS AND OPEN AREAS Community Garden  P 

Institutional PARKS AND OPEN AREAS Park, Public or Private P P 

Institutional PUBLIC SAFETY Police, Fire, or EMS Facility P S 

Institutional PUBLIC SAFETY Correctional Facility   

Institutional PUBLIC SAFETY Security Training Facility   

Institutional TRANSPORTATION Airport   

Institutional TRANSPORTATION Helicopter Landing Facility S  

Institutional TRANSPORTATION Passenger Terminal, Surface 
Transportation 

S  

Institutional UTILITIES Utility, Major P S 

Institutional UTILITIES Utility, Minor P P 

Commercial ADULT AND SEXUALLY-ORIENTED 
BUSINESSES 

All Adult and Sexually-Oriented 
Businesses 

  

Commercial ANIMAL CARE Major P  

Commercial ANIMAL CARE Minor P  

Commercial EATING ESTABLISHMENTS Restaurant, Major P  

Commercial EATING ESTABLISHMENTS Restaurant, Minor P  

Commercial EATING ESTABLISHMENTS Bar, Nightclub, or Dance Hall S  

Commercial OFFICES Major S  

Commercial OFFICES Minor P  

Commercial PARKING, COMMERCIAL All P  

Commercial PERSONAL SERVICES Major P  

Commercial PERSONAL SERVICES Minor P  

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, INDOOR Major P  

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, INDOOR Minor P  

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, 
OUTDOOR 

Major S  

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, 
OUTDOOR 

Minor P  

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, 
OUTDOOR 

Firing Range   

Commercial RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, 
OUTDOOR 

Water-Related Uses   

Commercial RETAIL SALES Flea Market S  

Commercial RETAIL SALES Grocery Store P  

Commercial RETAIL SALES Major P  

Commercial RETAIL SALES Minor P  

Commercial STORAGE, COMMERCIAL Major P  

Commercial STORAGE, COMMERCIAL Minor P  

Commercial TELECOMMUNICATIONS Antenna Collocation (on a Building) P P 

Commercial TELECOMMUNICATIONS Antenna Collocation (on a Tower) P P 

Commercial TELECOMMUNICATIONS Small Wireless Facility P P 

8.18.c

Packet Pg. 221

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ri
n

ci
p

al
 U

se
 T

ab
le

 -
 H

C
 v

s 
V

R
  (

23
93

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1)



CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL USE TABLE, DISTRICT COMPARISON 

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL VS VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL 
 

USE CLASS MAIN CATEGORY CATEGORY HC VR 
 

Page 3 of 3 

Commercial TELECOMMUNICATIONS Telecommunications Tower, 
Freestanding 

S  

Commercial TELECOMMUNICATIONS Telecommunications Tower, Stealth P P 

Commercial VEHICLE ESTABLISHMENT Major P  

Commercial VEHICLE ESTABLISHMENT Minor P  

Commercial VISITOR ACCOMMODATIONS Bed and Breakfast  S 

Commercial VISITOR ACCOMMODATIONS Campground S  

Commercial VISITOR ACCOMMODATIONS Hotel or Motel S  

Industrial EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRY All   

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES Contractor Service P  

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES Crabshedding   

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES Fuel Oil or Bottled Gas Distributor   

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES General Industrial Service and Repair S  

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES Heavy Equipment Sales, Rental, or 
Service 

P  

Industrial INDUSTRIAL SERVICES Research and Development P  

Industrial MANUFACTURING AND PRODUCTION Manufacturing, Heavy   

Industrial MANUFACTURING AND PRODUCTION Manufacturing, Light P  

Industrial POWER GENERATION Solar Array S S 

Industrial POWER GENERATION Wind Energy Conversion Facility S  

Industrial WAREHOUSE AND FREIGHT MOVEMENT All P  

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Incinerator   

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Land Application of Sludge/Septage   

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Landfill   

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Public Convenience Center or Transfer 
Station 

P  

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Recycling Center P  

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Salvage or Junkyard   

Industrial WASTE-RELATED SERVICES Waste Composting Facility   

Industrial WHOLESALE SALES Major P  

Industrial WHOLESALE SALES Minor P  
 

NOTES: 
 
"P" = Permitted 
"S" = Permitted with Special Use Permit 
Blank = Prohibited 
 
For more information regarding categories and their descriptions, please refer to UDO Table 4.3.10, Principal Use 
Table. 

 

8.18.c

Packet Pg. 222

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ri
n

ci
p

al
 U

se
 T

ab
le

 -
 H

C
 v

s 
V

R
  (

23
93

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1)



 

Ordinance No. 2019-03-01 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County  

Zoning Map 

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Map of Camden County, North 

Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on December 20, 

1993, and subsequently amended. 

  

Article II. Amendment to Zoning Map  
 

The Official Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which was adopted on 

December 20, 1993, and subsequently amended, is hereby amended as follows: 

 

The property currently shown in the Camden County Tax Assessor’s Office as 

PIN 01-7080-00-30-7405 is hereby re-zoned from Highway Commercial (HC) to  

Village Residential (VR).   

 

Article III. Penalty 

 

1. Violations of the provision of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its  

Requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards established 

in connection with grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits, 

shall constitute a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to five-hundred ($500) 

dollars or a maximum thirty (30) days imprisonment as provided in G. S. 14-4. 

 

2. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to  

comply with any of its requirements, including violations of any conditions and 

safeguards established in connection with the grants of variances or Special Use 

or Conditional Use Permits, shall also subject the offender to a civil penalty of 

one-hundred ($100) dollars for each day the violation continues.  If the offender 

fails to pay the penalty within ten (10) days after being cited for a violation, the 

penalty may be recovered by the county in a civil action in the nature of debt.  A 

civil penalty may not be appealed to the Board of Adjustment if the offender was 

sent a final notice of violation in accordance with Article 151.568 and did not take 

an appeal to the Board of Adjustment within the prescribed time. 

 

3. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action. 

 

8.18.d

Packet Pg. 223

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
  (

23
93

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1)



 

4. Each day that any violation continues after notification by the administrator that  

such violation exists shall be considered a separate offense for purposes of the 

penalties and remedies specified in this section. 

 

5. Any one, all or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be  

used to enforce this Ordinance. 

            

 

Article IV. Severability 
 

If any language in this Ordinance is found to be invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction or other entity having such legal authority, then only the specific language 

held to be invalid shall be affected and all other language shall be in full force and effect. 

 

 

Article V. Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this       day of        ,                                

2019. 

 

 

      County of Camden 

    

      _____________________________ 

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Karen Davis 

Clerk to the Board       (SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.18.d

Packet Pg. 224

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

03
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 K
ee

te
r 

B
ar

n
  (

23
93

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.19 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy 

Hollow Estates 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Sleepy Hollow Estates

 (DOC) 

Staff Report Sleepy Hollow Estates (PDF) 

revised Sleepy Hollow PHASE 2 Prelim 20190423

 (PDF) 

Supporting documents Sleepy Hollow (PDF) 

Planning Board Minutes 03172019 (PDF) 

Draft PB Minutes 04172019 (PDF) 

 

See attached summary and supporting documentation. 

8.19

Packet Pg. 225



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

          
 
 
 

Item Number:  

     

Meeting Date:   May 6, 2019 

Attachments:   Preliminary Plan/Staff Findings/TRC inputs  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Set Public Hearing; Preliminary Plan  
                       Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates Major 

Subdivision – (UDO 2019-02-18) 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Planning Board met on March 20, 2019 and carried application over to their April 

17, 2019 Planning Board meeting based on property line disputes.   The following 

issues were brought up by an adjacent property owner: 

 

Property lines – See County Attorney letter dated March 29, 2019 (attached). 

 

Farmland Compatibility Standards (Article 151.5.5 of the UDO) and NC General 

Statute 153A-340 (attached).  

 

Length of Cul-de-sacs – Article 151.6.2.3K (UDO) 

 

External Street Connectivity – Article 151.6.2.3.I.2a (UDO) 

 

Included in findings are approved Board Minutes of March 20, 2019 and excerpt of 

draft minutes from April 17, 2019 concerning above issues.   

 

After discussion with Planning Staff and adjacent property owner on above issues, 

Planning Board recommended approval of Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates major 

subdivision on a 5-0 vote. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1) Set Public Hearing for June 3, 2019  

  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak    ____ 

R. Munro       ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak    ____ 
R. Munro       ____ 
ABSENT        ____ 
RECUSED     ____ 
 

8.19.a

Packet Pg. 226

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



8.19.b

Packet Pg. 227

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



8.19.b

Packet Pg. 228

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



8.19.b

Packet Pg. 229

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



8.19.b

Packet Pg. 230

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



8.19.b

Packet Pg. 231

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



8.19.b

Packet Pg. 232

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



8.19.b

Packet Pg. 233

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



8.19.b

Packet Pg. 234

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



8.19.b

Packet Pg. 235

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



N

A

D

 

8

3

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

INV 4.62

INV 3.11

INV 1.65

INV 3.08

INV IN 0.72

INV OUT 0.35

INV 1.80

INV 1.61

INV 2.16

INV 4.15

INV 4.41

INV 3.00

INV 1.03

INV 1.04

EX. 15" PP

INV IN 1.42

INV OUT 1.73

INV 2.80

INV 2.88

INV 3.34

INV 3.56

INV 2.71

INV 1.27

INV 2.34

INV 3.09

INV 3.00

INV 4.29

INV 4.45

INV 3.85

INV 4.44

INV 3.56

INV 4.68

INV 4.15

S
L

E
E

P
Y

 
H

O
L

L
O

W
 
R

O
A

D
 
-
 
S

R
 
1
2
0
2
 
(
6
0
'
 
R

/
W

)

20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

2

0

'
 
D

R

A

I
N

A

G

E

 
E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

P

.
C

.
 
8

,
 
S

L

D

.
 
1

3

8

EX. SEDIMENT

BASIN

NOW OR FORMERLY

TRUSTEES OF NEW SAWYERS

CREEK BAPTIST CHURCH

D.B. 181, PG. 400

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

PERCY I. & WANDA J.

DANIELS

D.B. 114, PG. 344

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

PERCY I. & WANDA J.

DANIELS

D.B. 114, PG. 344

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

MILES E. GREGORY

D.B. 64, PG. 238

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

REGINALD TILLETT

D.B. 125, PG. 121

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

LIVIA MARIE BAKER

D.B. 278, PG. 701

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

GARY K. ELLENBURG

D.B. 261, PG. 825

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

HORACE MELVILLE CUTHRELL

D.B. 212, PG. 77

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY

TRUSTEES OF NEW SAWYERS

CREEK BAPTIST CHURCH

D.B. 366, PG. 719

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

JOSEPH K. & WANDA S. FORBES

D.B. 352, PG. 823

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY

JOSEPH K. & WANDA S. FORBES

D.B. 352, PG. 823

ZONING: RR

4

3

2

1

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

SARAH FORBES HAMILTON &

BRAD ALLAN HAMILTON

D.B. 299, PG. 8

ZONING: RR

TBM

TOP NUT FIRE

HYDRANT

ELEV=6.07

WWWWWW

W

W

W

W

W

5

11

49,333 SF

1.13 AC

40,000 SF

0.92 AC

13

8

12

50,368 SF

1.15 AC

40,200 SF

0.92 AC

7

14

41,223 SF

0.94 AC

40,200 SF

0.92 AC

50,367 SF

1.15 AC
6

9

10

51,388 SF

1.17 AC

50,367 SF

1.15 AC

48,790 SF

1.12 AC

1

2

2

.
5

9

'

1

2

5

.
6

2

'

1

4

.
3

3

'

7

.
6

1

'

5

0

.
1

0

'

5

0

' 
A

G

R

I
C

U

L

T

U

R

E

 
B

U

F

F

E

R

4

0

'
 
B

U

F

F

E

R

5
0
'
 
A

G

R

I
C

U

L
T

U

R

E
 
B

U

F
F

E
R

5

0

' 
F

R

O

N

T

 
S

E

T

B

A

C

K

 
(
T

Y

P

.
)

1
0
'
 
S

I
D

E
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 
(
T

Y
P

.
)

1

0

' 
R

E

A

R

 
S

E

T

B

A

C

K

 
(
T

Y

P

.
)

1

0

'
 
S

I
D

E

 
S

E

T

B

A

C

K

 
(
T

Y

P

.
)

NOW OR FORMERLY

TRUSTEES OF NEW SAWYERS

CREEK BAPTIST CHURCH

D.B. 181, PG. 400

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

PERCY I. & WANDA J.

DANIELS

D.B. 114, PG. 344

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

PERCY I. & WANDA J.

DANIELS

D.B. 114, PG. 344

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

MILES E. GREGORY

D.B. 64, PG. 238

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

REGINALD TILLETT

D.B. 125, PG. 121

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

LIVIA MARIE BAKER

D.B. 278, PG. 701

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

GARY K. ELLENBURG

D.B. 261, PG. 825

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

HORACE MELVILLE CUTHRELL

D.B. 212, PG. 77

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY

TRUSTEES OF NEW SAWYERS

CREEK BAPTIST CHURCH

D.B. 366, PG. 719

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

JOSEPH K. & WANDA S. FORBES

D.B. 352, PG. 823

ZONING: RR

NOW OR FORMERLY

JOSEPH K. & WANDA S. FORBES

D.B. 352, PG. 823

ZONING: RR

4

3

2

1

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

SLEEPY HOLLOW ESTATES

P.C. 8, SLD. 138

ZONING: NR

NOW OR FORMERLY

SARAH FORBES HAMILTON &

BRAD ALLAN HAMILTON

D.B. 299, PG. 8

ZONING: RR

1

3

5

.
1

4

'

C

1

S25°53'45"W     541.80'

S

3

5

°
1

7

'2

8

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
2

6

2

.
5

4

'

C

3

C

4

C

5

S

3

5

°
1

7

'2

8

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
1

9

2

.
8

5

'

N

3

5

°
1

7

'2

8

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
1

9

6

.
0

2

'

C

6

C

7

C

8

N

3

5

°
1

7

'2

8

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
2

6

2

.
5

4

'

S

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
3

2

0

.
0

1

'

S

3

5

°
1

7

'2

8

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
4

9

9

.
8

6

'

S

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
3

2

0

.
0

0

'

S

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
3

2

0

.
0

0

'

S

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
E

 
 
 
 
 
3

2

0

.
0

0

'

N

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
3

6

6

.
9

5

'

N

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
3

5

1

.
0

5

'

N

5

4

°
4

2

'
3

2

"
W

 
 
 
 
 
3

3

4

.
4

0

'

N
6
3
°
1
1
'
0
7
"
W

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
.
8
2
'

N
6

4
°
0

6
'
1

5
"
W

 
 
 
 
 
3

8
5

.
0

1
'

1

2

2

.
5

9

'

1

2

5

.
6

2

'

14.33'

N
5
8
°
2
0
'
0
5
"
W

 
 
 
 
 
7
5
5
.
3
8
'

133.50'140.37'

20.92'

1

2

5

.
0

0

'

7.61'

1

3

5

.
1

4

'

116.99'62.59'

5

0

.
7

9

'

1

5

0

.
2

8

'

1

4

1

.
2

0

'

1

4

7

.
9

0

'

1

3

1

.
9

9

'

6

3

.
9

6

'

3
8
4
.
6
4
'

5
0
.
1
0
'

3
2
0
.
6
4
'

3
9
0
.
3
7
'

5
0
.
1
0
'

3
7
0
.
7
4
'

5

0

.
1

0

'

5

0

.
1

0

'

1

1

4

.
8

6

'

1

3

3

.
7

6

'

1

2

5

.
6

2

'

1

2

5

.
6

2

'

1

0

8

.
0

1

'

1

4

6

.
9

7

'

7.57'

7.86'

24.16'

C
2

L
=

8
3
.0

5
'

L=3.04'

N25°53'45"E     273.87'

C
9

L=7.65'

L
=

7
0
.2

4
'

BLUE BILL WAY (50' R/W) 1,220 LF

PROPOSED ±1,240 LF

6" PVC WATER MAIN

PROPOSED

FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED MAIL CBU

& SCHOOL BUS STOP

TEMPORARY BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLY

S1.0

P
R
E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R
Y
 
P
L
A
T

JHS

KDH

KDH

1" = 60'

JOB NO.

SHEET NO.

SCALE

DESIGNED BY

CHECKED BY

D
A
T
E

DRAWN BY

DATE

R
E
V
I
S
I
O

N
 
D

E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O

N

Y
O

U
R
 
V
I
S
I
O

N
 
A
C
H

I
E
V
E
D

 
T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 
O

U
R
S
.

T
h
e
s
e
 
p
l
a
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
d
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
c
l
u
s
i
v
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
o
f
 
T

I
M

M
O

N
S

 
G

R
O

U
P

 
a
n
d
 
m

a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
r
e
p
r
o
d
u
c
e
d
 
i
n
 
w

h
o
l
e
 
o
r
 
i
n
 
p
a
r
t
 
a
n
d
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
w

h
a
t
s
o
e
v
e
r
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
s
i
v
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
n
o
t

l
i
m

i
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
,
 
b
i
d
d
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
s
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
w

i
t
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
p
r
e
s
s
 
w

r
i
t
t
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
T

I
M

M
O

N
S

 
G

R
O

U
P

.

1
8
0
5
 
W

e
s
t
 
C
i
t
y
 
D

r
i
v
e
,
 
U

n
i
t
 
E
 
|
 
E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
 
C
i
t
y
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
9
0
9

T
E
L
 
2
5
2
.
6
2
1
.
5
0
3
0
 
F
A
X
 
2
5
2
.
5
6
2
.
6
9
7
4
 
 
w

w
w

.
t
i
m

m
o
n
s
.
c
o
m

T
H

I
S
 
D

R
A
W

I
N

G
 
P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D

 
A
T
 
T
H

E

E
L
I
Z

A
B

E
T
H

 
C

I
T
Y

 
O

F
F
I
C

E

S
:
\
1
0
9
\
4
2
8
7
4
 
-
 
S

l
e
e
p
y
 
H

o
l
l
o
w

 
E

s
t
a
t
e
s
-
P

H
A

S
E

 
2
 
-
 
C

a
m

d
e
n
,
 
N

C
\
D

W
G

\
S

h
e
e
t
\
4
2
8
7
4
C

-
p
r
e
l
i
m

.
d
w

g
 
|
 
P

l
o
t
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
4
/
2
3
/
2
0
1
9
 
9
:
4
5
 
A

M
 
|
 
b
y
 
K

i
m

 
H

a
m

b
y

N
O

R
T
H

 
C
A
R
O

L
I
N

A
 
L
I
C
E
N

S
E
 
N

O
.
 
C
-
1
6
5
2

02/20/19

S
L
E
E
P
Y
 
H

O
L
L
O

W
 
E
S
T
A
T
E
S
 
-
 
P
H

A
S
E
 
2

C
O

U
R
T
H

O
U

S
E
 
T
N

S
P
 
-
 
C
A
M

D
E
N

 
C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
N

O
R
T
H

 
C
A
R
O

L
I
N

A

42874

PRELIMINARY PLAT

NOT FOR RECORDATION

OR CONVEYANCE

APR 23, 2019

SITE DATA:

1. OWNERSHIP:

DANIEL CLAY CARTWRIGHT

382 NORTH GREGORY RD

SHAWBORO, NC 27973

PH: 252-202-6645

2. SITE INFORMATION:

PIN: 028935012881690000

SUBDIVISION AREA: 14.57 AC

ZONING: NR (NEIGHBORHOOD RESIDENTIAL)

EXISTING USE: VACANT

PROPOSED USE: RESIDENTIAL

PC 8 PG 163

PROPOSED LOTS: 10

MINIMUM LOT SIZE: 40,000 SQ. FT.

R 2 BUILDING SETBACKS:

50' FRONT

10' SIDE

10' REAR

3. THIS SITE IS LOCATED IN FLOOD ZONES "X", "SHADED X", AND

"AE(4)" ACCORDING TO THE FEMA FLOOD MAPS 3720892600K, DATED

DECEMBER 16, 2005 AND 3720893500J, DATED DECEMBER 21, 2019.

FLOOD ZONES ARE SCALED FROM F.I.R.M.

FLOOD ZONES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

4. THERE ARE NO WETLANDS LOCATED WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA.

VICINITY MAP

NO SCALE

US

158

S

L

E

E

P

Y

 

H

O

L

L

O

W

 

R

D

S

A

W

Y

E

R

S

 

C

R

E

E

K

 

R

D

 

-

 

S

R

 

1

2

0

0

L

A

M

B

S

 

R

D

S

R

 

1

1

4

5

RUN SWAMP RD

SR 1201

SITE

343

LEGEND

PROPOSED CENTERLINE OF DITCH

FLOOD ZONE

EX. TOP OF BANK

EX. CONTOUR

EX. DITCH/SWALE

PROPOSED ACCESS EASEMENT

PROPOSED CULVERT

EX. DRAINAGE EASEMENT

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

W
PROPOSED WATER MAIN

PROPOSED AGRICULTURAL BUFFER

PROPOSED LOT LINE

BOUNDARY

PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY

EX. POWER POLE

PROPOSED CENTERLINE

EX. RIGHT-OF-WAY

EX. PAVEMENT

W EX. WATER MAIN

EX. CULVERT PIPE

BUILDING SETBACK

PROPOSED CONCRETE

PROPOSED ASPHALT

EX. RIP RAP

0

SCALE 1"=60'

120'60'

8.19.c

Packet Pg. 236

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 r

ev
is

ed
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 P

H
A

S
E

 2
 P

re
lim

 2
01

90
42

3 
 (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



8.19.d

Packet Pg. 237

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



8.19.d

Packet Pg. 238

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



8.19.d

Packet Pg. 239

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



8.19.d

Packet Pg. 240

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



8.19.d

Packet Pg. 241

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



8.19.d

Packet Pg. 242

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



8.19.d

Packet Pg. 243

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



8.19.d

Packet Pg. 244

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



8.19.d

Packet Pg. 245

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



8.19.d

Packet Pg. 246

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



8.19.d

Packet Pg. 247

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

Page 1 of 26 

Camden County Planning Board 
Regular Meeting 

March 20, 2019 7:00 PM 
Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 
 

MINUTES 
The regular meeting of the Camden County Planning Board was held on March 20, 2019 in the 
Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina. The following members were present: 

CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME: 
 
Chairman Calvin Leary called the March 20, 2019 meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  The following 
Planning Board and Staff Members were Present: 
 

Planning Board: 
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Calvin Leary Chairman Present 6:50 PM 
Fletcher Harris Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Rick McCall Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Ray Albertson Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Steven Bradshaw Vice Chairman Absent  
Cathleen M. Saunders Board Member Present 6:50 PM 

 
Staff: 
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Dan Porter Planning Director Present 6:50 PM 
Dave Parks Permit Officer Present 6:50 PM 
Amy Barnett Planning Clerk Present 6:30 PM 

 
The following were also present: 

Attendee Name Address Purpose Meeting Section 
Chad Williams, 
Keeter Barn LLC 

N. Water Street,  
Elizabeth City, NC 

Applicant for Rezoning New Business (NB),  
Item A 

Jimmy Brickhouse Keeter Barn Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item A 
Dave Klebitz, 
Bissell Professional 
Group 

Kitty Hawk, NC Agent for Applicant, 
Prelim Plat North River 
Crossing 

NB, Item B 

Andrew Monn Trotman Rd, Shiloh, NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item B 
Kim Hamby, 
Timmons Group 

Elizabeth City, NC Agent for Applicant, 
Prelim Plan Sleepy Hollow 
Phase II 

NB, Item C 

Jennifer Tillett Sleepy Hollow Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item C 
Aaron Pippen Sleepy Hollow Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item C 
Reginald Tillett Sleepy Hollow Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item C 
Sarah Hamilton Sleepy Hollow Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item C 
Wanda Daniels Sleepy Hollow Rd, Camden NC Adjacent Property Owner NB, Item C 

  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 248

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 2 of 26 

CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA 
Motion to Approve Agenda as Presented 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES - DECEMBER 19, 2018 
Motion to Approve Minutes from December 19, 2018 As Written 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Cathleen M. Saunders, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

OLD BUSINESS 
None. 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. UDO 2019-03-04 Rezoning Keeter Barn LLC 
Dave Parks described this agenda item and went over the staff report as incorporated herein 
below: 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

STAFF REPORT 
UDO 2019-03-04 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
File Reference: UDO 2019-03-04 
Project Name: N/A 
PIN: 01-7080-00-30-7405 
 
Applicant: Keeter Barn, LLC 
 Chad Williams &  
 Alexander Underhill 
 Address: 205 N. Water St. 
 Elizabeth City, NC 
 Phone: (252) 340-0147 
 Email: 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 249

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 3 of 26 

Agent for Applicant: 
 Address 
 Phone: 
 Email: 
 
Current Owner of Record:  Applicant 
 
Meeting Dates: 
 3/1/2019 Neighborhood 
 3/20/2019 Planning Board 
 
Application Received: 3/4/2019 
 By:  David Parks, Permit Officer 
 
Application Fee paid:  $970.00, Check #1001 
 
Completeness of Application:  Application is generally complete 
 
Documents received upon filing of application or otherwise included: 
 A. Rezoning Application  
 B. Deed 
 C. GIS Aerial, Current zoning, Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use and 

CAMA Land Use Plan Suitability Maps 
 D. Neighborhood Meeting Comments 
 
REQUEST:  Rezone approximately 47 acres from Highway Commercial (HC) to 
Village Residential (VR) on property located at intersection of U.S. 17 and 
Keeter Barn Road South Mills Township. 
 
From:  Highway Commercial (HC) – Article 151.3.6.5 (Purpose Statement) 
 
The Highway Commercial district is applied to lots along the County’s major 
roadways (e.g., US 158, US 17, NC 34, and NC 343) and is intended for 
automobile-oriented commercial development as well as large floorplate 
commercial uses and uses that require or generate truck traffic.  The 
district also accommodates agricultural and institutional uses as well as 
higher density residential uses with a special use permit. New development in 
the HC district is grouped and configured to ensure regular lateral vehicular 
and pedestrian access along major transportation routes as a means of 
establishing a well-connected transportation system.  New development is 
configured to maintain high visual quality along the major roadway, or is 
fully screened from view.  Sufficient spacing and screening is included along 
lot lines shared with adjacent residential zoning districts to ensure 
compatibility. New commercial and multi-family developments in the district 
are subject to the design standards in Article 151.5. 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 250

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 4 of 26 

To:  Village Residential (VR) – Article 151.3.5.6 (Purpose Statement) 
 
The Village Residential (VR) district is established to accommodate a wide 
range of residential and institutional use types at modest densities on lots 
within and adjacent to designated village centers.  The district allows 
duplexes, live/work units, single-family attached, and single-family detached 
dwellings, but does not allow mobile homes, manufactured homes, or 
conservation subdivisions.  As a means of creating compact, functional 
neighborhoods, the district also allows a wide variety of institutional uses, 
including community centers, day care, schools, assisted living, religious 
institutions, parks, and utilities.  Lots served by public sewer may have 
reduced minimum lot sizes and building height is measured from the base flood 
elevation.  District regulations are intended to support the County’s 
investment in infrastructure by encouraging the development of compact, 
vibrant neighborhoods with a variety of house sizes and types that are 
located in close proximity to complementary institutional uses. Low density 
development comprised of uniform building types or styles is discouraged. 
 
PROJECT LOCATION:  intersection of U.S. 17 and Keeter Barn Road South Mills 
Township 
 
Maps Show: 

Vicinity Map:  Located at intersection US 17 & Keeter Barn Road, South 
Mills, NC 

Drainage Map:  Drains north east to a ditch then south along ditches 
leading to McPherson Ditch 

CAMA Land Suitability Map:  Very High 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map:  Rural Residential One Acre 

Lots 
CAMA Future Land Use Map:  Low Density Residential 
Zoning Map:  Current Zoning is Highway Commercial (HC) 

 
SITE DATA 
 
Lot size: Approximately 42 acres. 
Flood Zone: X 
Zoning District(s): Highway Commercial (HC) 
Existing Land Uses: Farmland 
 
Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
|            | North       | South      | East             | West           | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
| Zoning     | Rural       | Highway    | Highway          | Working Lands  | 
|            | Residential | Commercial | Commercial (HC)  | (WL)           | 
|            | (RR)        | (HC)       | /Rural           |                | 
|            |             |            | Residential (RR) |                | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
| Use & Size | Housing     | Sewer      | South Mills Fire | US 17 / Dismal | 
|            |             | Treatment  | Station /        | Swamp Canal    | 
|            |             | Plant      | Farmland         |                | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 251

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 5 of 26 

Proposed Use(s):  Residential purposes. 
 
Description/History of property:  Property is located just outside the Core 
Village of South Mills at the corner of U.S. 17 and Keeter Barn Road and is 
currently being farmed by current owner.   Property was advertised for sale 
by previous owner under the current zoning of Highway Commercial (which was 
approved in 2004) with no prospects.  Possible reasons for this maybe; 1) 
Only access for a development would be off Keeter Barn Road as U.S. 17 is a 
limited access corridor; 2) proximity to sewer treatment; 3) lack of 
demand/rooftops. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT 
 
Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches: 
 
Distance & description of nearest outfall:  The property is very flat with a 
minimal outfall ditch located at the southeastern part of the property 
running eastwardly, then turns south through a few farm field then South to 
the McPherson Ditch.  Approximate distance to McPherson Ditch is 3,880 feet.   
See Drainage Map next page. 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
 
Water: Water lines are located adjacent to property along Keeter Barn Road. 
Sewer: Sewer lines are located adjacent to property along Keeter Barn Road. 
Fire District: South Mills Fire Department adjacent to property. 
Schools: Impact calculated at Development stage. 
Traffic: Generation of traffic will be at development stage.  
 
PLANS CONSISTENCY 
 
CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives:  Inconsistent.  The CAMA Land Use 
Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 
2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the Future Land Use 
Maps has property identified as Low Density Residential on 1-2 acres or 
greater.  However at the time the plan was adopted, the County had not 
considered connecting residential to sewer to allow for higher density 
residential development due to limited availability of sewer.   The requested 
zoning makes it partially consistent in that it allows for residential 
development but with a higher density based on water/sewer availability. 
 
2035 Comprehensive Plan:  Inconsistent.  The proposed zoning change is 
inconsistent with Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2012) as Future Land Use Maps 
reflect land as Rural Residential on one acre lots.  Availability of sewer 
for higher density development was more focused within the Core Villages of 
the County at the time the plan was approved.   Requested zoning makes it 
partially consistent in that it allows for residential development, but at a 
higher density based on water/sewer availability. 
 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan:  Consistent AND Inconsistent.  Proposed 
Interstate 87 which is on the States TIP may affect portion of property. 
 
Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners:  N/A. 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 252

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 6 of 26 

FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Will the proposed zoning change enhance the public health, safety or welfare?  
Yes.  Reasoning:   The proposed zoning change will enhance the public health, 
safety, or welfare as it will allow for a mix of higher density of 
residential and commercial uses with the availability of water and sewer 
which both are located adjacent to property.  
 
Is the entire range of  permitted uses in the requested classification more 
appropriate than the range of uses in the existing classification?  Yes.  
Reasoning:     Uses in the requested zoning classification are more 
appropriate as it offers a mix of residential and commercial options.       
The current zoning has been in place since 2004 and has been listed for sale 
by previous owners with no success. 
 
For proposals to re-zone to non-residential districts along major arterial 
roads: 
 

Is this an expansion of an adjacent zoning district of the same 
classification?  N/A  Reasoning: 
 
What extraordinary showing of public need or demand is met by this 
application?  N/A  Reasoning: 

 
Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or 
unusual disturbances?  No.  Reasoning:  All uses permitted in the requested 
zoning classification should not cause any serious noise, odors, light 
activity, or unusual disturbances. 
 
Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern?  No.  
Reasoning:  Property is outside any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern. 
 
Does the county need more land in the zoning class requested?  Yes.  
Reasoning:    The requested VR zoning is a revision as far as definition and 
permitted uses of the previous Mixed Village Residential (R1) (new zoning 
classification approved on February 4, 2019).   Additional zoning of this 
classification is needed in specific areas within and adjacent to Camden’s 
Village areas.   
 
Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for the 
proposed uses?  No.  Reasoning:    The location of the property makes it 
appropriate for the proposed uses. 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 253

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 7 of 26 

Will not exceed the county’s ability to provide public facilities:  No.  
Reasoning:  The proposed zoning will have an impact on all public facilities, 
how much will be determined at the development of the property. 

• Schools 
• Fire and Rescue 
• Law Enforcement 
• Parks & Recreation 
• Traffic Circulation or Parking 
• Other County Facilities 

 
Is This A Small Scale “Spot” Rezoning Request Requiring Evaluation Of 
Community Benefits?  No. 
 
If Yes (regarding small scale spot rezoning) - Applicants Reasoning: 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
|                | Personal Benefits / Impact | Community Benefits / Impact | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
| With Rezoning  |                            |                             | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
| Without        |                            |                             | 
| Rezoning       |                            |                             | 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
STAFF COMMENTARY: 
 
The current zoning on property is inconsistent with the CAMA Plan and 
Comprehensive Plan as the plans reflect property to be zoned as residential.  
The requested zoning according to its Purpose Statement (listed above) fits 
this request as property sits adjacent to South Mills Core Village. 
 
Consistency statement: 
 
The existing zoning and requested zoning are inconsistent with both the CAMA 
and Comprehensive plans as both plans identify property as low density 
residential.   At the time both plans were adopted sewer availability was 
either nonexistent or the use of was focused within the villages where 
available. 
 
Excerpt from Comprehensive Plan – Vision Statement 
 
“New development will be focused within targeted core areas to breathe new 
life into established county villages and to efficiently use existing and 
planned infrastructure and public resources. New housing choices will be made 
available to serve families, young professionals, and retirees. Rural areas 
will maintain prominence in the county, and will continue to serve 
agricultural and forestry production and low density residential 
development.” 
Also, the requested zoning is supported by several action strategies of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Planning Staff recommends approval of Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-03-04) 
from Highway Commercial to Village Residential. 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 254

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 8 of 26 

Dave Parks continued describing this rezoning application: 
• Applicants Chad Williams and Alex Underhill are present 
• Neighborhood meeting was held at South Mills Fire Department 
• There is one comment from an adjacent property owner 
• Presented paperwork from South Mills Fire Department outlining their concerns 
• Applicant requests to rezone approximately 42 acres from HC to VR 
• Property is located at intersection of US 17 and Keeter Barn Road in South Mills NC 
• Showed a map detailing the location of the core village of South Mills 
• Read the purpose statement for both the Highway Commercial and the Village 

Residential zoning districts (see page 3 above) 
 
Dave Parks introduced Chad Williams, the applicant for this rezoning, who spoke briefly. 
 
Chad Williams, Pudding Ridge Road, South Mills, NC; Applicant for Rezoning 

• Looking to get property rezoned to Village Residential 
• Want to get the most out of the acreage 

 
After Mr. Parks finished going over the staff report, he addressed the comment from adjacent 
property owner and the handout which he had given the Planning Board members.   
 
The comment from the adjacent property owner was simply a desire to be able to connect to 
county sewer. 
 
The handout from the South Mills Fire Department dealt primarily with the approach and landing 
zone for the Nightingale and also the USCG helicopters.  An area of the property to be rezoned 
falls within the 400 foot "protection" zone.  South Mills Fire is concerned that any structures 
built within the zone would put both the structure and the helicopter at risk due to the approach 
path and landing zone.  Also South Mills Fire is concerned that noise and air displacement from 
a helicopter may damage any structure built adjacent to the Fire Department property.  In 
addition, there is some concern regarding the retention pond at the rear of the Fire Department 
property, it will need to be fenced in should a residential development arise out of this rezoning. 
 
Chairman Calvin Leary asked if this meant that nothing could be built in the 400 foot protection 
zone.  Mr. Parks responded that the South Mills Fire Department is requesting that the property 
remain zoned Highway Commercial. 
 
Mr. Parks pointed out that the 400 foot protection zone also includes a large portion of the "back 
yard" of the Fire Department property itself, such that an approach from behind the fire 
department is possible with regard to the 400 foot protection zone. 
 
Dan Porter, Planning Director, commented that this information reflects information brought by 
the South Mills Fire Department and is not a requirement that the county has.  Rezoning is a yes 
or no decision and conditions cannot be placed on it. 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 255

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 9 of 26 

Fletcher Harris asked if there was sufficient property clearance for a rear approach of a 
helicopter to land on the South Mills Fire Department's helicopter pad.  Dan Porter responded by 
referring to an image which showed the 400 foot protection zone which also shows that there is 
sufficient property clearance for such landings. 
 
Dave Parks commented that things like the protection zone of the helicopter pad are things that 
would be considered at development stage. 
 
Mr. Porter added that the issues with regard to the South Mills Fire Department's helicopter pad 
would be brought up regardless of whether the property was developed commercial or 
residential, so it really doesn't matter what zoning it is, if it's developed either way, this issue will 
come up. 
 
At this time, Chairman Calvin Leary asked if there were any further questions or comments from 
the board.  Hearing none, he opened the floor to public comment. 
 
Jimmy Brickhouse, Keeter Barn Road, South Mills, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Has a problem with the potential runoff from the property when it is developed.  Afraid 
that water will drain towards his property and cause flood problems for his farm. 

• Stated he is against the rezoning. 
 
Mr. Porter addressed Mr. Brickhouse's concern: 

• If the property is able to connect to county sewer, there is potential for smaller lots 
• If the property is developed as Highway Commercial, then there will be parking lots 
• If the property is developed as Residential, then there will be roof tops 
• Developers must submit a subdivision plan, and they also must submit a stormwater plan 

to show how runoff will be handled 
• Post development runoff cannot exceed the pre development amount of runoff 

o Requires the developer to build any number of different types of ponds, swales, 
etc., to ensure that the runoff post development will be equal or less than the pre 
development rate. 

o Applies to the runoff rate of a 10-year storm, which is about 5.5 or 6 inches in a 
24 hour period. 

o Camden's requirement is several times more than what the state requires. 
• Stormwater runoff is usually an issue that is addressed when a project moves forward. 
• Regardless of whether it is developed as commercial or residential, any development 

must come back to the board and go through a number of processes which includes the 
submission of an engineered stormwater plan, to ensure that the upstream and 
downstream properties are not negatively impacted by the development. 

 
Chairman Calvin Leary asked if there were any further questions or comments, hearing none, he 
called for a motion.  Mr. Parks reminded the board that 2 motions would be required, a 
consistency statement, and a motion to approve or deny. 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 256

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 10 of 26 

Motion to Approve Consistency Statement for UDO 2019-03-04 Rezoning Keeter Barn LLC: 
Consistency Statement:  The existing zoning and requested zoning are inconsistent with 
both the CAMA and Comprehensive plans as both plans identify property as low density 
residential.  At the time both plans were adopted sewer availability was either nonexistent 
or the use of was focused within the villages where available. 
 
Excerpt from Comprehensive Plan - Vision Statement 
 
"New development will be focused within targeted core areas to breathe new life into 
established county villages and to efficiently use existing and planned infrastructure and 
public resources.  New housing choices will be made available to serve families, young 
professionals, and retirees.  Rural areas will maintain prominence in the county, and will 
continue to serve agricultural and forestry production and low density residential 
development." 
 
Also the requested zoning is supported by several action strategies of the Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

 

Motion to Approve UDO 2019-03-04 Rezoning Keeter Barn LLC 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Cathleen M. Saunders, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

 
 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 257

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 11 of 26 

B. UDO 2019-02-01 North River Crossing Phase 2 Prelim Plat 
Motion to Recuse Cathleen Saunders from UDO 2019-02-01, North River Crossing Phase 2 
Prelim Plat 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

Cathleen Saunders is recused and will not participate in any board discussion or action pertaining 
to North River Crossing Phase 2 Preliminary Plat. 
 
Dan Porter described this agenda item and went over the staff report as incorporated herein 
below: 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

STAFF REPORT 
 

UDO 2019-02-01 
Preliminary Plan North River Crossing 

Phase II Major Subdivision 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
File Reference: UDO 2019-02-01 
Project Name: North River Crossing 
PIN: 03-8965-00-24-6702 
Applicant: Seaboard Development Alliance LLC/EHP Land Company, Inc 
Address: 2875 Forge Road 
  Toano, VA 23168 
 
 Phone: (757) 869-0001 
 Email: 
 
Agent for Applicant: 
 Address: 
 Phone: 
 Email: 
 
Current Owner of Record: Seaboard Development Alliance, LLC 
 
Meeting Dates: 
2/12/2019 Neighborhood Meeting 
3/06/2019 Technical Review Meeting 
 
Application Received: 2/12/19 
 By: David Parks, Permit Officer 
 
Application Fee paid:  $8,400 Check #003034 
 
Completeness of Application:  Application is generally complete 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 258

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 12 of 26 

Documents received upon filing of application or otherwise included: 
 A. Land Use Application 
 B. Preliminary Plan 
 C. Deed 
 D. Perc Tests from Albemarle Regional Health Services on all lots 
 E. Neighborhood meeting comments 
 F. TRC Inputs 
 
PROJECT LOCATION: 
 
Street Address: Off Ditch Bank Road 
Location Description: Shiloh Township 
 
REQUEST: Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing Major Subdivision 

– 42 lots - Article 151.2.3.16 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance.  Phase II will be further phased as 2A, 2B, 2C. 

 
SITE DATA 
Lot size: Approximately 47 acres 
Flood Zone: Zone X 
Zoning District(s): Neighborhood Residential (NR) 
Adjacent property uses: Agriculture, Residential 
Streets: Shall be dedicated to public under control of NCDOT. 
 
Street/Subdivision name: 
 Subdivision name: North River Crossing 
 Street Names: Pamlico, Perquimans, Cape Fear Drives, Chowan, and  

Deep Court’s 
 
Open Space Required: 47 acres X .05 =  2.35 acres (Article 151.3.5.5) 
Landscaping: Landscaping Plan required at Construction Drawings. 
 

Farmland Compatibility Standards: Per Article 151.5.5, a 50’ wide 
vegetative buffer required along all agricultural 
uses.  Indicated on plan. 

 
Recreational Land: Per Article 151.6.1.13 – Developer is requesting to 

pay the fee in lieu of providing land.  Formula:  
1452 sf per lot X 42 (number of lots) = 60,984 sf or 
1.4 acres. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT 
 
Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches:  Development will outfall into the North River. 
 
Distance & description of nearest outfall:  Distance to North River from 
Development is approximately 2000 feet.  There is a maintenance easement 
along a ditch of the Roberts property to which the HOA is responsible to 
maintain in accordance with recorded covenants.  Maintenance easement 
recorded in Camden County Registry of Deeds in BK 301, Pages 817-820. 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 259

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 13 of 26 

MAPS SHOW: 
Vicinity Map: Property is located along Ditch Bank Road just south of Cape 

Fear Drive 
 
Preliminary Subdivision Map: Shows phase 2 to be completed in 3 parts.  

Phase 2A is on Ditch Bank Road, Phase 2B is along Cape Fear 
Drive, Perquimans Drive, and Chowan Court.  Phase 2C is along 
Pamlico Drive and Deep Court. 

 
TECHNICAL REVIEW STAFF (SKETCH PLAN) COMMENTS 
 1. South Camden Water.  Approved. 
 2. Albemarle Regional Health Department.  Approved.  Received 42 perc 

tests. 
 3. South Camden Fire Department.  Reviewed no comments. 
 4. Pasquotank EMS (Central Communications).  Subdivision/road names 

approved. 
 5. Sheriff’s Office.  Reviewed no comments. 
 6. Postmaster Elizabeth City.  No response.  Did not attend meeting. 
 7. School Superintendent.  No response.  Did not attend meeting. 
 8. Transportation Director of Schools.  Approved with request that all 

cul-de-sac’s turning radius be a minimum of 43.5 feet. 
 9. Camden Soil & Water Conservationist.  Approved. 
 10. NCDOT.  No response. 
 11. Mediacom.  No response. 
 12. Century Link.  No response. 
 
PLANS CONSISTENCY 
 
CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives:  Consistent.  CAMA Land Suitability 
Maps has land designated as Moderate Suitability and Future Land Use Maps has 
land designated as Medium Density Residential. 
 
2035 Comprehensive Plan:  Consistent.  Property is consistent with 2035 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Maps which has area designated as Rural 
Residential. 
 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan:  Consistent.  Property abuts Ditch Bank 
and Trotman Roads and internal roads will be dedicated to public. 
 
FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Endangering the public health and safety?  No.  In staff’s opinion, 
application does not appear to endanger public health and safety. 
 
Injure the value of adjoining or abutting property?  No.  In staff’s opinion, 
application does not appear to injure the value of adjoining or abutting 
property as this is Phase II of existing subdivision. 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 260

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 14 of 26 

EXCEED PUBLIC FACILITIES: 
 
Schools:  Yes.  Proposed development will generate 28 students (.67 per 
household X 42 lots).  High School over capacity:  2018/2019 capacity: 570     
Enrollment:  607  -  Capacity does not include modular units for Camden Early 
College. 
 
Fire and rescue:  No.  Approved. 
 
Law Enforcement:  No.  Approved. 
 
~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ 
 
Planning Staff recommends approval of Preliminary Plan for Phase II of North 
River Crossing Subdivision with the following comments. 
 
1. Constructions drawings to reflect turning radius of cul-de-sacs be 

minimum 43.5’ as requested by the Transportation Director of Camden 
County Schools. 

 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Mr. Porter paused going through the staff report about half way through and introduced Dave 
Klebitz with Bissell Professional Group, agent for the applicant, who spoke briefly. 
 
Dave Klebitz, Bissell Professional Group, Kitty Hawk, NC 

• This is for phase 2 of this development 
• Will be completed in 3 sub phases, A, B, and C, as described in the Staff Report Mr. 

Porter just finished going over. 
• Sewer will be septic tanks.  All 42 lots perked. 
• Water will be via public water. 
• Stormwater / drainage will be handled via an expansion of existing ponds / canals 

o Showed pre and post development drainage maps 
o The 3 sub phases all drain to different locations 
o Subphase C drains to areas in phase 1 
o Tiny portion of subphase B located at corner of Perquimans Drive and Ditch Bank 

Road drains to Ditch Bank Road 
• Roads will be to NCDOT Standards 
• 1 cul-de-sac, turning radius for school busses will be about 48 feet. 
• Mail will be in cluster mailboxes as per requirements of the Post Office.  Location of 

cluster mailbox will be along the new entrance / extension of Perquimans Drive which is 
off of Ditch Bank Road, and will be behind Lot 60. 

o New entrance way was going to be in with phase 2B, but as the cluster mailbox 
needs to be located along this part of the road, the first couple hundred feet of the 
new roadway will be constructed with phase 2A. 

• All TRC comments have been addressed 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 261

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 15 of 26 

A comment was made that when it rains, sometimes the intersection of Ditch Bank and Trotman 
Roads are like a river as far as drainage is concerned. 
 
Mr. Porter added that originally when they submitted their sketch plan for this overall project, 
there was some discussion about drainage at the north and at the southern end of the canal / ditch 
that leads off of Ditch Bank Road.  They could not get an agreement from the property owner to 
let them clean and maintain that ditch, so all the water from this development goes to the north 
underneath Trotman and out towards Indian Town Creek.  As Mr. Klebitz showed on the 
drainage map, some of the current runoff comes down through Ditch Bank Road.  They are 
actually eliminating some of that runoff so that the only water that will be coming off and onto 
Ditch Bank Road will be the front yards of those houses along that roadway.  Runoff from the 
other sections of the development will be routed elsewhere. 
 
Mr. Porter continued going through the Staff Report.  Mr. Porter commented that this particular 
development was started under the old UDO (Phase 1), and that Phase 2 will be completed under 
the new UDO which was adopted this past February.  The landscaping requirement was one 
change that under the old UDO was required at Preliminary Plat, now under the new UDO it is 
required at construction drawing stage. 
 
After concluding the staff report, Mr. Porter opened the floor to public comment. 
 
Andrew Monn, Trotman Road, Shiloh, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Primary concern is drainage 
• Spoke of effects of Hurricane Matthew and how roads were impassible after the storm 

due to flooding 
• Spoke of culverts in area being clogged and posing a problem for drainage 
• Asked that the culverts be cleaned before turning anything over to a Home Owners 

Association 
 
At this time, Chairman Calvin Leary asked if there were any further questions or comments from 
the board, staff, or public.  Hearing none, he entertained a motion. 
 
Motion to Approve UDO 2019-02-01 North River Crossing Phase 2 Prelim Plat 

RESULT: PASSED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Rick McCall, Board Member 
SECONDER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson 
RECUSED: Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

 
Mr. Porter commented for public knowledge that this agenda item will be on the April Board of 
Commissioners meeting agenda to set a public hearing date, and the public hearing itself will be 
held in May. 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 262

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 16 of 26 

C. UDO 2019-02-18 Sleepy Hollow Estates Phase 2 Preliminary Plan 
Dan Porter described this agenda item and went over the Staff Report as incorporated herein 
below: 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
STAFF REPORT 
 
UDO 2019-02-18 
Preliminary Plan Sleepy Hollow Estates 
Phase II Major Subdivision 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
File Reference: UDO 2019-02-18 
Project Name: Sleepy Hollow Estates 
PIN: 02-8935-01-28-8169 
Applicant: Daniel Cartwright 
Address: 366 N. Gregory Rd, Shawboro, NC 27973 
Phone: (252) 202-6645 
Email: 
 
Agent for Applicant: Timmons Group 
Address: 1805 West City Dr., Unit E, Elizabeth City, NC, 27909 
Phone: (252) 338-2913 
Email: 
 
Current Owner of Record: 
 
Meeting Dates: 
02/19/2019  Neighborhood Meeting 
03/06/2019  Technical Review Meeting 
03/20/2019  Planning Board 
 
Application Received: 2/22/19 
 By: David Parks, Permit Officer 
 
Application Fee paid: $2,000 Check #1210 
 
Completeness of Application:  Application is generally complete 
 
Documents received upon filing of application or otherwise included: 

A. Land Use Application 
B. Preliminary Plan 
C. Agent for Applicant letter 
D. Deed 
E. Pere Tests from Albemarle Regional Health Services 
F. TRC Inputs 

 
PROJECT LOCATION: 
 

Street Address: Off Sleepy Hollow Road Adjacent to address 312 
Location Description: Courthouse Township 

  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 263

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 17 of 26 

REQUEST: Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates Major Subdivision 
- 10 lots - Article 2.3.16 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
MAPS SHOW: 

Vicinity Map:  Property located adjacent to 312 Sleepy Hollow Road 
Zoning Map:  Property is zoned Rural Residential (RR) 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map:  Rural Preservation 
CAMA Plan Future Land Use Map:  Medium Density Residential 

 
SITE DATA 
 
Lot size:  Approximately 14 acres 
Flood Zone:  Zone AE/X 
Zoning District(s):  Neighborhood Residential (NR) 
Adjacent property uses:  Agriculture, Residential, Church. 
Streets:  Shall be dedicated to public under control of NCDOT. 
Street/Subdivision name: 

Subdivision name:  Sleepy Hollow Estates 
Street Names:  Blue Bill Way 

Open Space Required:  12 acres X .05 = .61 acres 
Landscaping:  Landscaping Plan required at Construction Drawing. 
Farmland Compatibility Standards:  Per Article 151.5.5, a 50' wide vegetative 

buffer required along all agricultural uses. Indicated on plan. 
Recreational Land:  N/A (Less than 30 lots) Article 151.6.1.13 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
 
Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches: Sawyers Creek 
Distance & description of nearest outfall: Outfall located at the South-
eastern portion of property through 404 wetlands under Sawyers Creek Road out 
to Sawyers Creek.  Distance is approximately 2,100 feet to culvert. 
 
TECHNICAL REVIEW STAFF COMMENTS 
 

1. South Camden Water.  Approved. 
2. Albemarle Regional Health Department.  Approved. 10 Perc tests 

received. 
3. South Camden Fire Department.  Reviewed with no comments. 
4. Pasquotank EMS (Central Communications). Subdivision/road names 

approved. 
5. Sheriff's Office.  Reviewed with no comments. 
6. Postmaster Elizabeth City.  No response. Did not attend TRC 

meeting. 
7. Superintendent of Schools.  No response. Did not attend TRC 

meeting. 
8. Transportation Director of Schools.  Approved with comments (see 

attached). 
9. Camden Soil & Water Conservationist.  Approved. 
10. NCDOT.  No response. 
11. Mediacom.  No response. 
12. Century Link.  Reviewed no comments. 

  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 264

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 18 of 26 

PLANS CONSISTENCY 
 
CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives:  Consistent.  CAMA Future Land Use 
Maps has land designated as Medium Density Residential. 
 
2035 Comprehensive Plan:  Inconsistent.  Property Zoned Neighborhood 
Residential (NR) prior to adoption of Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Maps 
which has area designated as Rural Preservation. 
 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan:  Consistent.  Property abuts Sleepy Hollow 
Road (SR 1202) and internal road will be dedicated to public. 
 
FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Endangering the public health and safety?  No.  In staff's opinion, 
application does not appear to endanger public health and safety. 
 
Injure the value of adjoining or abutting property?  No.  In staff's opinion, 
application does not appear to injure the value of adjoining or abutting 
property. 
 
EXCEED PUBLIC FACILITIES: 
 
Schools:  Yes.  Proposed development will generate 6 students (.67 per 
household X 9 lots).  High School over capacity: 2018/2019 capacity: 570 
Enrollment: 607 - Capacity does not include modular units for Camden Early 
College 
 
Fire and rescue:  No.  Approved. 
 
Law Enforcement:  No.  Approved. 
 
~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ . ~ 
 
Staff recommends approval of Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates based on current 
by right zoning with the following recommendations: 
 
 

1. Constructions drawings to reflect turning radius of cul-de-sacs be 
minimum 43.5' as requested by the Transportation Director of Camden 
County Schools. 

 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 265

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 19 of 26 

Dan Porter noted that both the applicant, Daniel Cartwright, and his agent, Kim Hamby with 
Timmons Group are both present.  At this time, Mr. Porter asked Ms. Hamby to speak regarding 
this project. 
 
Kim Hamby, Timmons Group, Elizabeth City, NC; Agent for Applicant 

• Propose to develop 10 residential lots on 14.5 acres located between the church and the 4 
lot minor subdivision which are located on Sleepy Hollow Road 

• There will be a single road in 
• Instead of a traditional cul-de-sac, there will be a turn-around, essentially a bulb cul-de-

sac at the 1000 foot limit to meet safety requirements for safety turn around.  We've 
extended the road to meet the County's requirement for interconnectivity should anyone 
desire to develop the adjacent property, they would be able to connect. 

• Site has been evaluated for individual septic systems.  Entire project has been approved 
by ARHS with varying levels of fill from 8 to 18 inches which is typical in this area. 

• Water will be via South Camden Water, with a line run down for hydrants 
• Drainage - there is a lead ditch that goes around the back end south side of the property 

and leads into wetlands at the indicated corner.  The only drainage passing through this 
site at present drains to the wetland.  The ditches on the site extend about 100-150 feet 
onto the property to the north.  What we intend to do is put in a perimeter ditch system 
that will intercept the runoff from the adjacent properties and bring the runoff around the 
site instead of trying to bring it through the lots.  We have started discussions with Greg 
Johnson regarding how the drainage review will be done. 

• If it is found that storage is needed to prevent post development discharge of runoff, it is 
likely that a wide swale will be used to provide for water storage after storms, that will 
still be able to drain down, and that will likely be positioned between the agricultural 
buffer to the south and the backs of the lots on the south side of the proposed road. 

• We've received some comments from the school system about enlarging the pavement 
radius for school bus turn-around, and have reached out to NCDOT to start talking with 
them about what they would prefer to see taking into account the request of a 43.5 foot 
turning radius and NCDOT's right of way requirement of 50 foot, the right of way may 
need to be enlarged as well.  If that becomes the case, there is sufficient property to move 
lot lines around to accommodate this if needed. 

• Mail boxes will be cluster/community mailboxes per Postal requirements 
• Parking will be ADA Compliant, will be one standard parking space and one ADA 

Compliant parking space per lot instead of just having roadside pull offs 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 266

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 20 of 26 

At this time, Dan Porter continued going over the staff report.  Items of note are: 
• Is in the AE flood zone, so will require elevation certificates when lots are developed 
• Lots are surrounded by agricultural, residential, and a church 
• Open space requirement is .61 acres which will likely be accommodated in the buffer that 

is required. 
• A farmland compatibility buffer of 50 feet is required between any agricultural use 

adjacent to residential use 
• Buffers are located on the western and southern parts of the property 
• A 50 foot buffer between the church and the road in the project, which is not a 

requirement, they are doing this on their own.  
• Project outfalls eventually to Sawyer's Creek located at the south eastern portion of the 

property, draining through 404 wetlands 
• New UDO changes the way Stormwater Plans and Permits are handled.  Under the old 

UDO, stamped sealed and approved stormwater plans and state permits were required to 
be submitted prior to preliminary plat.  The New UDO changes all that.  Under the new 
UDO, those plans and permits are still required, but just not at this point.  They have to 
commit to doing that, and we need a letter from the agency stating that they have met all 
the requirements.  What we require for our stormwater requirements is for the applicant 
to identify the amount of watershed area upstream from their project that will be flowing 
into this project, and as Ms. Hamby mentioned, it is pretty minimal for this project.  They 
are also required to identify the downstream outfall.  That is the point at which the pre 
and post development is measured.  The question is how much does this development 
have to model the amount of other water coming from other parts of the property going to 
the ditch / wetlands, and that is still under discussion with Mr. Johnson, the county's 
stormwater engineer. 

• Mr. Greg Johnson has provided a letter stating "Based on inspection and the information 
provided, I recommend that the project proceed to the design stage.  Please include any 
future submittals of plans for the first phase".  Mr. Johnson has approved it at this point 
with the information presented, and he will be involved in the process of approving the 
overall stormwater plan before they can begin construction. 

• Recommending approval of Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates based on the current by right 
zoning with the recommendation that construction drawings reflect the request by the 
schools regarding 43.5 foot turnaround radius. 

 
Chairman Calvin Leary asked Kim Hamby how the Neighborhood Meeting went.  Ms. Hamby 
responded that there were questions relating to stormwater runoff/drainage, trash during 
construction.  Ms. Hamby went on to say that there will be a 50 foot planted buffer between the 
farmland and the development which should prevent debris from construction from leaving the 
construction site(s).  She added that there were some property owners to the north who had 
property line disputes, but that to her knowledge those have been settled and property has been 
transferred. 
 
Mr. Porter commented that the trash / debris issue is an issue everywhere that construction 
occurs.  It is something that is monitored by the building and code enforcement officials. 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 267

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 21 of 26 

Ms. Hamby also stated that the buffer between the development and the church property will be 
maintained and kept up.  She added that this particular buffer may be reduced in size slightly if it 
is found that the lot lines need to be modified.  This is not an issue because the buffer between 
the development and the church is not a requirement. 
 
At this time, Chairman Calvin Leary opened the floor to public comment. 
 
Jennifer Tillett, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Property owner with property line dispute 
• Did not get deed to property that was transferred to her 

 
Dave Parks stated that the deeds were "quit claims deeds", the survey on this was signed, and the 
deeds were recorded, he did not know why she did not get hers. 
 
Aaron Pippen, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Also had property line dispute 
• Stated that his claim is still open regarding the land transfer until his property has been 

surveyed, even though paperwork says that the Cartwright's claim has been settled. 
 
Mr. Porter stated that the paperwork Mr. Pippen referred to was a letter from his title insurance 
agent.  Mr. Porter further stated that he is not sure what Mr. Pippen's claim actually is, other than 
that there was a negotiated agreement with regard to where the property line is.  The survey was 
brought to the Planning Department, staff reviewed the survey which had quit claims deeds with 
it.  The survey was signed and walked over to the Register of Deeds office and recorded.  It is up 
to the board whether or not to continue this proceeding given that there is question of 
recordation. 
 
Chairman Calvin Leary voiced his opinion that this agenda item should be tabled pending 
verification that the land transfer issues have been cleared up. 
 
Rick McCall asked if the problem was getting the actual deed or if the problem was with the 
information on the survey.  Mr. Pippen responded that the problem is with the line on the survey.  
He further stated that the developer has his own survey, but to settle the dispute the line has to be 
settled.  They settled their claim and surrendered their right to the disputed property, but for the 
right to that property the line has to be established. 
 
Ms. Hamby stated that the title company is the one who ordered the survey, reviewed the deeds, 
the survey, and the descriptions. 
 
Fletcher Harris stated agreement with Chairman Leary that this item should be tabled pending 
verification of the aforementioned issues. 
 
Mr. Pippen asked if he could speak on other issues with this development.  Chairman Leary 
agreed. 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 268

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 22 of 26 

Aaron Pippen, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 
• He owns a field adjacent to the development.  Referring to a property line on one of the 

maps, stated that there is no 50 foot buffer. 
 
Mr. Porter addressed this concern stating that the uses adjacent to the property line mentioned by 
Mr. Pippen is not a bona fide farm use and so according to the Farmland Compatibility 
Standards, no buffer is required.  The property may be being farmed, but unless it is a bona fide 
farm, no buffer is required. 
 
Mr. Pippen disputed this saying that the property could be farmed by a bona fide farmer.  Mr. 
Porter stated that there is no indication that the property is in fact a bona fide farm.  Dave Parks 
added that to qualify as a bona fide farm, the tract of land has to be greater than 10 acres and it 
has to be registered as a farm use with the Tax Department and be taxed as a farm.  Mr. Parks 
further stated that if a farmer has, for example, a parcel of 100 acres which is a bona fide farm, 
and he has another parcel of 3 acres elsewhere that is in his name, the 3 acre tract qualifies as a 
bona fide farm because he has the larger bona fide farm tract. 
 
Mr. Pippen disputed this and asked for a reading of the ordinance. 
 
Mr. Porter read:  "Except where exempted by this section with regard to exemption, the 
standards in this section shall apply to all major subdivisions, planned developments, special use 
permits, or site plans, on lots or tracts of 5 acres or greater, proposed adjacent to bona fide farm 
or agricultural uses associated with a bona fide farm."  Our interpretation is that if you a 
development that is 5 acres or greater and it is adjacent to a bona fide farm it has to provide a 
farmland compatibility buffer.  This project is greater than 5 acres, but it is not adjacent to a bona 
fide farm.  It may be farmed, but it is not a bona fide farm. 
 
Mr. Pippen again argued that the land is an agricultural use.  Mr. Porter reiterated that it is not a 
bona fide farm or an agricultural use associated with a bona fide farm.  Mr. Pippen believes that 
if a farmer who is associated in his own person with a bona fide farm farms the land, that makes 
it associated with a bona fide farm.  Mr. Porter stated that this is not correct, that to be a bona 
fide farm, the land must meet the General Statutes set forth for such by the State of North 
Carolina. 
 
Mr. Pippen continued on to his next concern:  Cul-de-sacs.  Concern is over the length of the 
dead end road.  Believes that no dead end road should be over 1000 feet in length. 
 
Mr. Porter addressed this by reading section 6.2.3 paragraph K of the new UDO.  "All dead end 
streets (excluding temporary dead end streets) shall be designed as cul-de-sacs, in accordance 
with the following standards:  (1) No cul-de-sac or dead end street shall exceed 1,000 feet in 
length nor be less than 100 feet in length, as measured from the closest street intersection 
centerline.  (2) Cul-de-sacs shall be designed and constructed to meet state standards and 
National Fire Protection Association standards.  (3) The entrance into a cul-de-sac shall be flared 
by sufficient width to ensure proper turning radius for emergency vehicles upon entering and 
exiting the cul-de-sac.  (4) Streets that include roundabouts shall not be considered cul-de-sacs or 
dead end streets."  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 269

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 23 of 26 

Mr. Porter clarified what he believed to be Mr. Pippen's issue:  that the road, a dead end road, is 
proposed to extend beyond 1000 feet.  Mr. Porter stated that staff looked at that and there is 
another section of the UDO, 6.2.3 paragraph I, which deals with external connectivity.  
6.2.3.I(2)(a) states "The arrangement of streets in a development shall provide for the alignment 
and continuation of existing or proposed streets into adjoining lands in those cases in which the 
adjoining lands are undeveloped and deemed appropriate for future development or in which the 
adjoining lands are developed and include opportunities for such connections."  Basically this 
means that if a proposed development is adjacent to a piece of undeveloped land, that it has to 
provide a means of continuing the road way for future use for a time when that land will be 
developed. 
 
Mr. Pippen disputed the external connectivity section saying that 6.2.3(K) says 1000 feet.  Mr. 
Parks stated that if the adjacent property were to be developed and the street connected up, then a 
turn around would not be required.  The turn around is for emergency vehicles and school 
busses, and it meets the requirements. 
 
Cathleen Saunders stated that there is a limit to the ability of emergency vehicles to back up on a 
road way turn around, and that what is proposed is the maximum they would be able to do. 
 
Rick McCall stated that this has more to do with public safety than with the developer.  The road 
has to be able to connect to any future road that may be part of a future development so 
emergency vehicles have access.  There has to be a turn around for emergency vehicles and there 
has to be a means to continue the roadway should a future development occur. 
 
Dan Porter stated that if there were more than 2 lots on the other side of the turn around, it would 
not be allowed.  The fact is that these two lots, whether there is a cul-de-sac or an extension, it 
would be configured differently and the driveways would be different.  There would be no ability 
to create a connectivity to the next project. 
 
Mr. Pippen brought up his next issue:  Harm to the community, specifically schools.  Chairman 
Calvin Leary stated that the school issue has been fully discussed.  Mr. Pippen objected saying 
he had not discussed it.  Mr. Porter stated that the plans for this project were sent to the school 
superintendent and they had no comments on the matter.  The Schools are part of the Technical 
Review Committee.  If they had concerns, they would be included in the board packet for this 
proceeding.   
 
Mr. Pippen continued arguing, Mr. Parks stated that if the school officials were concerned, they 
would be at this meeting. 
 
At this time, Chairman Leary asked if there were any further questions or comments.  Mr. 
Reginal Tillett came forward. 
  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 270

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 24 of 26 

Reginald Tillett, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 
• Concern is over a right of way at the back of his property that he has used for 40 years, 

whether or not he will get that back. 
 
Mr. Porter asked if he was referring to the farm property.  Mr. Tillett responded yes.  Mr. Porter 
stated that staff did research and could not find a registered easement.  Mr. Porter further stated 
that throughout the county, there are pathways that are used but are not registered as easements 
or rights of way. 
 
Ms. Hamby stated that there has always been a path that runs along the woods line that serviced 
the farm over all these years.  To the best of her knowledge that farm has been farmed by 
someone who assumed they owned that land at that time, and the individual property owners of 
these residential lots did not use that for access to their properties.  The pieces of land that they 
are calling their farm land and that are all a little less than an acre on the backs of their 
properties, they have legal right to access their own properties, and there was no right of way 
ever dedicated across that path for access to those properties, it was just utilized for the farm. 
 
Sarah Hamilton, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Procedural question:  If the stormwater plan is not required at this point, when will it be, 
and will the public get to see it? 

 
Mr. Porter replied saying that the stormwater plan does not go before a public hearing, it is 
required at construction drawing stage.  The stormwater plan has to undergo a long and drawn 
out effort to ensure compliance with the UDO and the standards therein.  To answer her question, 
he stated that when it is completed, it may be viewed at the Planning Department office. 
 
Aaron Pippen, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Spoke about the 4 lot minor subdivision that preceded this development 
• Believes the drainage was modified for the second phase of the development 
• Stated that the way the developer states the drainage runs, it doesn't drain that way 
• Stated that drainage was supposed to drain to the swamp, but didn't do that until a ditch 

was cut into the land, and all that did was make it drain to the pond and now that pond 
floods. 

• Stated that developer said there was a pipe for drainage, but there is no pipe 
 
Ms. Hamby stated that the drainage plan is registered in the Registry of Deeds office.  She 
further stated that 2 of the 4 lots drain to the road, and the other 2 drain to the back to the back to 
follow the original patterns at the time that Mr. Hyman took over the property several years ago. 
 
Dan Porter added that it was a 4 lot minor subdivision.  The way minor subdivisions handled 
stormwater prior to the adoption of the new UDO, was for the developer to submit a signed and 
sealed statement stating how the drainage would go, and the county accepted their seal.  Now, 
under the new UDO, 3 or more lot subdivisions must have their stormwater plans reviewed.  
Stormwater plans are recorded at the Register of Deeds.  Mr. Porter added that the engineer said 
there was a pipe under the ditch, and there is some evidence of that, but that is the 4 lot minor 
subdivision that is already completed and done and not part of this proceeding.  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 271

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 25 of 26 

Wanda Daniels, Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 
• Concerned about flooding 
• Floods around the curve and up into her yard 
• Water stands and doesn't drain 

 
Dan Porter stated that Sleepy Hollow Road is in the flood zone and it floods in a lot of places. 
 
Mr. Porter suggested to the board that this matter be tabled pending research into the property 
line disputes / transfers and be brought back to the Planning Board at a later date. 
 
Chairman Leary agreed and called for a motion. 
 
Motion to Table UDO 2019-02-18 Sleepy Hollow Estates Phase 2 Preliminary Plan 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
SECONDER: Rick McCall, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

UDO 2019-02-18 Sleepy Hollow Estates Phase 2 Preliminary Plan has been tabled until 
such time as property line disputes have been cleared up. 
 

VI. INFORMATION FROM BOARD & STAFF 
 
Mr. Porter presented the following information: 

• There will be a meeting in April where a commercial site plan will be up for review, a 
piece of land that was sold in the commerce park. 

  

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 272

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019 

 

Page 26 of 26 

VII. ADJOURN 
Motion to Adjourn 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ray Albertson, Board Member 
SECONDER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Albertson, Saunders 
ABSENT: Bradshaw 

Meeting adjourned at 8:42 PM. 

 

 

   
 Chairman Calvin Leary 
 Camden County Planning Board 
 

ATTEST: 

 
 
  
Amy Barnett, Clerk 
Camden County Planning Department 

8.19.e

Packet Pg. 273

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s 

03
17

20
19

  (
23

94
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

n
 P

h
as

e 
II 

S
le

ep
y 

H
o

llo
w

 E
st

at
es

)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – April 17, 2019 

Page 1 of 5 

 

Camden County Planning Board 
Regular Meeting 

April 17, 2019 7:00 PM 
Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 
 

MINUTES 
The regular meeting of the Camden County Planning Board was held on April 17, 2019 in the 
Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina. The following members were present: 

I.  CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME 
 
Chairman Calvin Leary called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
Planning Board Members Present: 
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Calvin Leary Chairman Present 6:50 PM 
Fletcher Harris Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Rick McCall Board Member Present 7:03 PM 
Ray Albertson Board Member Absent  
Steven Bradshaw Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Cathleen M. Saunders Board Member Present 6:50 PM 
Nathan Lilley Board Member Present 6:50 PM 

 
Staff members Present: 
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Dan Porter Planning Director Present 6:40 PM 
Dave Parks Permit Officer Present 6:30 PM 
Amy Barnett Planning Clerk Present 6:30 PM 

 
Others Present: 
Attendee Name / Address Title / Company Meeting Section 
Aaron Pippen, 262 Sleepy 
Hollow Road, Camden NC 

Adjacent Property Owner Old Business # A, 
Sleepy Hollow Estates 

Sean Robey, 154 US 158 E, 
Camden NC 

Eastern Carolina Engineering, 
Agent for Applicant 

New Business # A, 
WAO Garage 

  

8.19.f

Packet Pg. 274

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 P
B

 M
in

u
te

s 
04

17
20

19
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – April 17, 2019 

 

Page 2 of 5 

INTRODUCTION OF NEW BOARD MEMBER 
Planning Director Dan Porter introduced Nathan Lilley of Camden, NC, newest member of the 
Planning Board. 

IV.  OLD BUSINESS 
Old Business - UDO 2019-02-18 Preliminary Plan Phase 2 Sleepy Hollow Estates 
 
Dan Porter described this Old Business item.  This item was heard at the March 20, 2019 
meeting of the Camden County Planning Board.  At that meeting, adjacent property owners 
spoke of property line disputes between their property lines and the developer's property.  It was 
decided by the Board to table this item until such time as the disputes had been cleared up.  Staff 
consulted with County Attorney John Morrison who advised in writing that property line 
disputes are a matter for the courts and not governmental boards such as the Planning Board or 
Board of Commissioners.  Dan Porter summarized the letter which Attorney Morrison wrote: 
 

• Property line disputes are between property owners 
• Planning Board, Board of Commissioners, and Planning Staff do not have the right to 

intervene in such disputes 
• Property line disputes are a matter for the courts 
• If a developer decides to proceed, he does so at his own risk, even if he knows that at 

some point in the future the property lines may be disputed in court 
  

8.19.f

Packet Pg. 275

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 P
B

 M
in

u
te

s 
04

17
20

19
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – April 17, 2019 

 

Page 3 of 5 

• From letter:  "Although this may seem surprising to the public, it makes common sense 
upon even brief reflection.  If the Planning Board or the Board of Commissioners had the 
authority to stop development because of title concerns, any citizen could make an 
objection and bring development to a halt." 

 
Chairman Calvin Leary stated that considering the advice of the County Attorney on this, and 
since the reason for tabling this item was due to property line disputes, all discussion was 
handled at the prior meeting.  Chairman Leary also stated that there shall be no further discussion 
except one person who called him at his residence.  Chairman Leary had promised Aaron Pippen 
5 minutes worth of time to speak. 
 
Aaron Pippen, 262 Sleepy Hollow Road, Camden, NC; Adjacent Property Owner 

• Stated he spoke with the person who wrote the UDO and he said that as long as 
association with a bona fide farmer who is farming your piece of property can be shown, 
then that is what it was written for. 

 
Rick McCall asked if that person was present.  Dan Porter stated that he was not, and further 
stated that the person referenced was the consultant on the UDO. 
 
Dan Porter passed out a handout which was an excerpt of the North Carolina General Statutes 
which define what the State of North Carolina considers to be a Bona Fide Farm. 
 
Chairman Leary asked for confirmation that this was covered at the last meeting.  Mr. Porter 
stated it was but that he didn't have the legal reference at that meeting. 
 
Mr. Porter read from NCGS §153A-340(b)(2): 
 

"For Purposes of determining whether a property is being used for bona fide farm 
purposes, any of the following shall constitute sufficient evidence that the property is 
being used for bona fide farm purposes: 

a. A farm sales tax exemption certificate issued by the Department of Revenue 
b. A copy of the property tax listing showing that the property is eligible for 

participation in the present use value program pursuant to G.S. 105-277.3. 
c. A copy of the farm owner's or operator's Schedule F from the owner's or 

operator's most recent federal income tax return. 
d. A forest management plan." 

 
Mr. Porter stated that none of the 4 criteria listed above are on record for the adjacent property in 
question and that it does not qualify as a bona fide farm. 
 
Mr. Pippen asked Mr. Porter to read the County Ordinance relating to this matter. 
  

8.19.f

Packet Pg. 276

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 P
B

 M
in

u
te

s 
04

17
20

19
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – April 17, 2019 

 

Page 4 of 5 

After handing out a copy of the ordinance to the Board members, Mr. Porter read from the 
Farmland Compatibility Standards in the UDO, section 5.5.2 Applicability: 
 

"Except where exempted by Section 5.5.3, Exemptions, the standards in this section shall 
apply to all major subdivisions, planned developments, special use permits, or site plans 
on lots or tracts of five acres in area or greater proposed adjacent to a bona fide farm or 
agricultural use associated with a bona fide farm." 

 
Mr. Pippen keyed on this section contending that his property is "associated with a bona fide 
farm" if a farmer who is a bona fide farmer and who owns and operates a bona fide farm is 
farming his property. 
 
Chairman Leary stated that having none of the 4 criteria required by the State of North Carolina, 
the adjacent property can not be considered a bona fide farm. 
 
Mr. Pippen stated his belief that the 4 criteria are what constitutes a bona fide farm, he contends 
that his property is an associated use of a bona fide farm and not a bona fide farm itself. 
 
Steven Bradshaw asked what was the point of this discussion.  Mr. Pippen stated that the point 
was to obtain a 50 foot buffer between his property and the proposed development.  He further 
contended that the "one who wrote the UDO" said that if the property is a bona fide farm or 
associated with a bona fide farm that a 50 foot buffer should be applied. 
 
Rick McCall again asked if that person was present.  He further stated that the reason he asks this 
is because at the last meeting Mr. Pippen referred to information given to him by the 
Superintendent of Schools, but the Superintendent was not present to clarify statements made in 
his name.  The same holds true of the person Mr. Pippen refers to as the "one who wrote the 
UDO". 
 
Steve Bradshaw stated for clarification sake that the UDO was a collaborative effort, not written 
by any one individual, the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners among others all had a 
hand in it's writing, and have intimate knowledge of it's contents. 
 
At this time, Chairman Leary stated that Mr. Pippen's 5 minutes were up.  Mr. Pippen questioned 
why the time limit was applied.  Chairman Leary stated that at the beginning of this agenda 
item's discussion he had stated that there was to be no further discussion except the information 
from the County Attorney relating to the property lines and the 5 minutes he was allowing for 
Mr. Pippen to speak because he had promised such earlier in the week via a phone conversation 
with Mr. Pippen. 
 
At this time, Chairman Leary entertained a motion on this agenda item.  

8.19.f

Packet Pg. 277

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 P
B

 M
in

u
te

s 
04

17
20

19
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
Regular Meeting – April 17, 2019 

 

Page 5 of 5 

Motion to Approve UDO 2019-02-18 Preliminary Plan Phase 2 Sleepy Hollow Estates 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Fletcher Harris, Board Member 
SECONDER: Rick McCall, Board Member 
AYES: Leary, Harris, McCall, Bradshaw, Saunders, Lilley 
ABSENT: Albertson 

8.19.f

Packet Pg. 278

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 P
B

 M
in

u
te

s 
04

17
20

19
  (

23
94

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
n

 P
h

as
e 

II 
S

le
ep

y 
H

o
llo

w
 E

st
at

es
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.A 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report 

 

Attachments: Sales Tax Collections (PDF) 

FY 18-19 YTD Revenues (PDF) 

FY 18-19 YTD Expenditures (PDF) 

 

11.A

Packet Pg. 279



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 280

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
es

 T
ax

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s 
 (

23
83

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 281

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

83
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 282

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

83
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 283

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

83
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 284

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

83
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 285

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

83
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.b

Packet Pg. 286

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

83
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 287

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
83

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 288

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
83

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 289

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
83

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 290

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
83

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 291

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
83

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.c

Packet Pg. 292

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
83

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.B 

Meeting Date:   May 06, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Weekly Report (XLS) 

Register of Deeds Monthly Report (PDF) 

 

11.B

Packet Pg. 293



Camden County Register of Deeds: Tammie Krauss
March 2019 Daily Deposit

DATE NC CHILDRENSNC DOM. STATE COUNTY RETIREMENTAUTO FUND STATE ROD TOTAL
TRUST VIO. FUND REV. STAMPS REV. STAMPS TREASURYGENERAL

$17.72 $33.00 $2.33

03/01/19 -$          -$          240.10$        249.90$    4.05$        24.42$      37.20$      204.33$    760.00$           
03/04/19 -$          -$          264.60$        275.40$    4.20$        25.41$      37.20$      213.19$    820.00$           
03/05/19 -$          -$          285.18$        296.82$    1.83$        11.26$      12.40$      96.11$      703.60$           
03/06/19 5.00$        30.00$      2.11$        10.25$      6.20$        87.04$      140.60$           

03/07/19 25.48$          26.52$      5.40$        30.29$      62.00$      262.31$    412.00$           

03/08/19 5.00$        30.00$      6.06$        34.02$      43.40$      285.52$    404.00$           
03/11/19 -$          -$          233.24$        242.76$    4.80$        28.25$      43.40$      243.80$    796.25$           
03/12/19 228.83$        238.17$    5.13$        30.28$      49.60$      256.99$    809.00$           
03/13/19 5.00$        30.00$      1.29$        4.35$        6.20$        39.16$      86.00$             
03/14/19 686.00$        714.00$    4.91$        28.83$      49.60$      244.06$    1,727.40$        
03/15/19 181.30$        188.70$    1.32$        6.81$        18.60$      61.27$      458.00$           
03/18/19 4.33$        26.07$      24.80$      233.80$    289.00$           
03/19/19 5.00$        30.00$      24.50$          25.50$      1.83$        7.28$        12.40$      65.49$      172.00$           
03/20/19 5.00$        30.00$      266.07$        276.93$    3.18$        15.42$      24.80$      133.60$    755.00$           
03/21/19 5.00$        30.00$      -$              -$          1.44$        5.34$        6.20$        48.02$      96.00$             
03/22/19 205.80$        214.20$    6.03$        37.85$      43.40$      314.72$    822.00$           
03/25/19 284.20$        295.80$    2.15$        13.38$      12.40$      115.07$    723.00$           
03/26/19 63.70$          66.30$      1.50$        9.13$        12.40$      76.97$      230.00$           
03/27/19 -$          -$          281.26$        292.74$    3.24$        18.05$      37.20$      157.31$    789.80$           
03/28/19 606.62$        631.38$    6.06$        35.92$      49.60$      312.42$    1,642.00$        
03/29/19 485.10$        504.90$    5.66$        31.34$      68.20$      271.80$    1,367.00$        

0.00
0.00

-$                 
TOTAL 30.00$      180.00$    4,361.98$     4,540.02$ 76.52$      433.95$    657.20$    3,722.98$ 14,002.65$      

11.B.a

Packet Pg. 294

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

W
ee

kl
y 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
23

73
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s)



11.B.b

Packet Pg. 295

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

23
73

 :
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s)


	Agenda Packet
	Welcome & Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Rev. William Sawyer

	1. Public Comments
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Consideration of Agenda
	4. Presentations
	1. 2375 : U.S. Census Bureau - Doug Bell
	Printout: 2375 : U.S. Census Bureau - Doug Bell

	2. 2387 : Camden County Public Schools - Dr. Joe Ferrell
	Printout: 2387 : Camden County Public Schools - Dr. Joe Ferrell

	3. 2388 : Sheriff's Office Update - Sheriff Jones
	Printout: 2388 : Sheriff's Office Update - Sheriff Jones

	4. 2377 : Employee Recognition
	Printout: 2377 : Employee Recognition


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	5. Public Hearings
	A. 2370 : Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing Major Subdivision (UDO 2019-02-01)
	Printout: 2370 : Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing Major Subdivision (UDO 2019-02-01)
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet North River Crossing
	b. Staff Findings_North River
	c. Preliminary Plat Pg 5 OVERVIEW SHEET
	d. Pre-Development DA Map
	e. NRC Post Development


	6. New Business
	A. 2386 : March Monthly Report
	Printout: 2386 : March Monthly Report
	a. 20190429162439545

	B. 2395 : Resolution 2019-05-01
	Printout: 2395 : Resolution 2019-05-01
	a. Resolution 2019-05-01


	7. Board Appointments
	1. 2381 : Regional Advisory Council - Gwen Wescott
	Printout: 2381 : Regional Advisory Council - Gwen Wescott

	2. 2385 : Albemarle Regional Library Board - Nona Smith
	Printout: 2385 : Albemarle Regional Library Board - Nona Smith

	3. 2392 : Community Advisory Committee - Clarann Mansfield
	Printout: 2392 : Community Advisory Committee - Clarann Mansfield


	8. Consent Agenda
	1. 2363 : BOC Meeting Minutes - February 28, 2019
	Printout: 2363 : BOC Meeting Minutes - February 28, 2019
	a. bocminutes_022819

	2. 2364 : BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - March 28, 2019
	Printout: 2364 : BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - March 28, 2019
	a. bocboeminutes_032819

	3. 2368 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 1, 2019
	Printout: 2368 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 1, 2019
	a. bocminutes_040119

	4. 2369 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 8, 2019
	Printout: 2369 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 8, 2019
	a. bocminutes_040819

	5. 2391 : Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2391 : Budget Amendments
	a. Budget Amendments

	6. 2374 : School Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2374 : School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	7. 2376 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 2376 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	8. 2362 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 2362 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. 20190405132008625.pdf

	9. 2360 : Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2360 : Refunds Over $100.00
	a. 20190402141531489.pdf

	10. 2361 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2361 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. 20190402141540210.pdf

	11. 2380 : FY 19-20 Revised Annual Budget & CIP Calendar
	Printout: 2380 : FY 19-20 Revised Annual Budget & CIP Calendar
	a. Calendar FY19-20

	12. 2379 : 2018-2019 Audit Contracts
	Printout: 2379 : 2018-2019 Audit Contracts
	a. Camden County Audit Engagement Letter
	b. Camden County Audit Contract
	c. TDA Audit Engagement Letter
	d. TDA Audit Contract

	13. 2389 : Estimated Property Values
	Printout: 2389 : Estimated Property Values
	a. 20190430084509823

	14. 2378 : DSVC Funding Extension
	Printout: 2378 : DSVC Funding Extension
	a. Funding Request Extension 2019-2020

	15. 2384 : HMGP Contract - Holland Consulting Planners, Inc.
	Printout: 2384 : HMGP Contract - Holland Consulting Planners, Inc.
	a. HMGP Contract - Holland Consulting Planners, Inc.

	16. 2372 : Set Public Hearing - FY 2019-2020 Budget
	Printout: 2372 : Set Public Hearing - FY 2019-2020 Budget

	17. 2371 : Set Public Hearing - 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Plan
	Printout: 2371 : Set Public Hearing - 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Plan

	18. 2393 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-03-01
	Printout: 2393 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-03-01
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-03-01
	b. Staff Report Findings
	c. Principal Use Table - HC vs VR
	d. 2019-03-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Keeter Barn

	19. 2394 : Set Public Hearing - Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates
	Printout: 2394 : Set Public Hearing - Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Sleepy Hollow Estates
	b. Staff Report Sleepy Hollow Estates
	c. revised Sleepy Hollow PHASE 2 Prelim 20190423
	d. Supporting documents Sleepy Hollow
	e. Planning Board Minutes 03172019
	f. Draft PB Minutes 04172019


	9. County Manager's Report
	10. Commissioners' Reports
	11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies
	A. 2383 : FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report
	Printout: 2383 : FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report
	a. Sales Tax Collections
	b. FY 18-19 YTD Revenues
	c. FY 18-19 YTD Expenditures

	B. 2373 : Register of Deeds
	Printout: 2373 : Register of Deeds
	a. Register of Deeds Weekly Report
	b. Register of Deeds Monthly Report


	12. Other Matters
	13. Adjourn

	Appendix
	4.1 · 2375 : U.S. Census Bureau - Doug Bell
	4.2 · 2387 : Camden County Public Schools - Dr. Joe Ferrell
	4.3 · 2388 : Sheriff's Office Update - Sheriff Jones
	4.4 · 2377 : Employee Recognition
	5.A · 2370 : Preliminary Plan Phase II North River Crossing Major Subdivision (UDO 2019-02-01)
	5.A.a · Agenda Summary Sheet North River Crossing
	5.A.b · Staff Findings_North River
	5.A.c · Preliminary Plat Pg 5 OVERVIEW SHEET
	5.A.d · Pre-Development DA Map
	5.A.e · NRC Post Development

	6.A · 2386 : March Monthly Report
	6.A.a · 20190429162439545

	6.B · 2395 : Resolution 2019-05-01
	6.B.a · Resolution 2019-05-01

	7.1 · 2381 : Regional Advisory Council - Gwen Wescott
	7.2 · 2385 : Albemarle Regional Library Board - Nona Smith
	7.3 · 2392 : Community Advisory Committee - Clarann Mansfield
	8.1 · 2363 : BOC Meeting Minutes - February 28, 2019
	8.1.a · bocminutes_022819

	8.2 · 2364 : BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - March 28, 2019
	8.2.a · bocboeminutes_032819

	8.3 · 2368 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 1, 2019
	8.3.a · bocminutes_040119

	8.4 · 2369 : BOC Meeting Minutes - April 8, 2019
	8.4.a · bocminutes_040819

	8.5 · 2391 : Budget Amendments
	8.5.a · Budget Amendments

	8.6 · 2374 : School Budget Amendments
	8.6.a · School Budget Amendments

	8.7 · 2376 : Tax Collection Report
	8.7.a · Tax Collection Report

	8.8 · 2362 : DMV Monthly Report
	8.8.a · 20190405132008625.pdf

	8.9 · 2360 : Refunds Over $100.00
	8.9.a · 20190402141531489.pdf

	8.10 · 2361 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	8.10.a · 20190402141540210.pdf

	8.11 · 2380 : FY 19-20 Revised Annual Budget & CIP Calendar
	8.11.a · Calendar FY19-20

	8.12 · 2379 : 2018-2019 Audit Contracts
	8.12.a · Camden County Audit Engagement Letter
	8.12.b · Camden County Audit Contract
	8.12.c · TDA Audit Engagement Letter
	8.12.d · TDA Audit Contract

	8.13 · 2389 : Estimated Property Values
	8.13.a · 20190430084509823

	8.14 · 2378 : DSVC Funding Extension
	8.14.a · Funding Request Extension 2019-2020

	8.15 · 2384 : HMGP Contract - Holland Consulting Planners, Inc.
	8.15.a · HMGP Contract - Holland Consulting Planners, Inc.

	8.16 · 2372 : Set Public Hearing - FY 2019-2020 Budget
	8.17 · 2371 : Set Public Hearing - 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Plan
	8.18 · 2393 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-03-01
	8.18.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-03-01
	8.18.b · Staff Report Findings
	8.18.c · Principal Use Table - HC vs VR
	8.18.d · 2019-03-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Keeter Barn

	8.19 · 2394 : Set Public Hearing - Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates
	8.19.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Sleepy Hollow Estates
	8.19.b · Staff Report Sleepy Hollow Estates
	8.19.c · revised Sleepy Hollow PHASE 2 Prelim 20190423
	8.19.d · Supporting documents Sleepy Hollow
	8.19.e · Planning Board Minutes 03172019
	8.19.f · Draft PB Minutes 04172019

	11.A · 2383 : FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report
	11.A.a · Sales Tax Collections
	11.A.b · FY 18-19 YTD Revenues
	11.A.c · FY 18-19 YTD Expenditures

	11.B · 2373 : Register of Deeds
	11.B.a · Register of Deeds Weekly Report
	11.B.b · Register of Deeds Monthly Report



